
 
Telephone Enquiries: Ben Caulfield - Policy and Overview & Scrutiny Officer,  
Email:  ben.caulfield@hyndburnbc.gov.uk 
Published on Wednesday, 1 September 2021 

Page 1 of 2  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Resources Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
 
Thursday, 9 September 2021 at 3.00 pm, 
Acorn Suite, Accrington Town Hall 
 
Membership 
 
Chair: Councillor Paddy Short (in the Chair) 
 
Councillors Noordad Aziz, Andrew Clegg, Michael Hindley, Tim O'Kane, Carole Haythornthwaite, 
Sajid Mahmood and Patrick McGinley 
 
Cooptees:  

 

A G E N D A 
 
 

1.   Apologies for absence, Substitutions, Declarations of Interest and Dispensations   
 
 

2.   Minutes of Last Meeting  (Pages 3 - 6) 
 
To submit the Minutes of the Resources Overview and Scrutiny Committee held on 20th 
July 2021 for approval as a correct record. 
 
Recommended - That the Minutes be received and approved as a 

correct record. 
 

3.   Review of Council Reserves  (Pages 7 - 14) 
 
To inform the Committee of the financial reserves of the Council up to the end of March 
2021. 
 
Recommended - That the report be noted. 
 

 

Public Document Pack

mailto:ben.caulfield@hyndburnbc.gov.uk


Page 2 of 2 

 

4.   Performance Review 2020/21 (KPIs)  (Pages 15 - 80) 
 

To update the Committee on the Council’s latest performance review which 
monitors service area performance against key priorities set out in the Corporate 
Strategy using key performance indicators (KPIs) which can be linked up to 
corporate priorities whilst trying to achieve the Council’s aims and objectives. 
 
Recommended - That the Committee endorse and support the 

approach being taken in Hyndburn to meet the 
requirements. 

 

 
 



 
1 

 
RESOURCES OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

 

 
Tuesday, 20th July, 2021 

 
Present:  Councillor Paddy Short (in the Chair),  

Councillors Carole Haythornthwaite and Andrew Clegg 
 

In Attendance: Councillor Paul Cox, Cabinet Portfolio Holder for Markets and Town 
Centre 

  

Apologies: Councillors Michael Hindley, Patrick McGinley and Tim O'Kane 
 
 

 
147 Apologies for Absence and Substitutions 

 
Apologies for absence were submitted on behalf of Councillors Hindley, O’Kane and 
McGinley. 
 
Absent from the Committee were Councillors Mahmood and Aziz. 
 

148 Declarations of Interest and Dispensations 
 
There were no declarations of interest or dispensations. 
 

149 Minutes of Last Meeting 
 
The Minutes of the meeting held on 18th March 2021 were submitted for approval as a 
correct record. 
 
Resolved - That the Minutes be received and approved as a correct 

record. 
 

150 Confirmation of Work Programme 
 
The Overview and Scrutiny Officer submitted a report requesting that the Resources 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee gave consideration to and commented on the draft work 
programme for 2021/22.  He informed the Committee that it was their role to approve the 
work programme but also pointed out that there were gaps in the work programme to 
accommodate additional items being added and brought forward for scrutiny during the 
year.  He pointed out that items for consideration should be forwarded to himself to be 
considered in consultation with the Chair of the Committee. 
 
Resolved - That the work programme for the Resources Overview 

and Scrutiny Committee for 2021/22 be agreed. 
 
 

151 Nomination of Co-optees 
 
The Overview and Scrutiny Officer submitted a report to inform Members of the nominated 
Co-optees for the 2021-22 Resources Overview and Scrutiny Committee.  He explained 

Page 3

Agenda Item 2.



 
 
 

 

 
2 

that up to four member of the public could be appointed to the Committee and that it was 
the intention of such Co-optees to be non-political.   
 
The Chair informed the Committee that they had received three nominations for the role of 
Co-optee; Bernard Dawson, Doug Hayes and Stephen Button (all former Councillors with 
relevant experience of Scrutiny Committees).  He requested that the Committee gave 
consideration to the three proposed nominations.   
 
Resolved - That the Resources Committee approved the following 

three proposed nominations as Co-optees of the 
Committee for 2021/22: Bernard Dawson, Doug Hayes 
and Stephen Button, for proposal of formal approval at 
Full Council. 

 
 

152 Consideration of Scrutiny Protocol 
 
The Overview and Scrutiny Officer submitted a report for the Resources Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee to give consideration to the adoption of a protocol for Scrutiny 
Panels/Task and Finish Groups.  He explained that the Council’s constitution allowed the 
Committee to establish Panels to scrutinise specific topics.  The report set out the process 
for the running of these Panels.  He requested that the Committee gave consideration to 
adopting the process.   
 
Resolved - That the Scrutiny Panel protocol be adopted as detailed 

in Section 3 of the report, attached to the agenda. 
 
 
 
 

153 Temporary Rent Concessions for Indoor Market Hall Traders 
 
The Executive Director – Environment and the Cabinet Portfolio Holder for Town Centres 
and Markets, Councillor Paul Cox, reported on temporary rent concessions for indoor 
market hall traders.   
 
Councillor Cox gave details of continued rent reductions and discussions that had been 
held with market traders.  He outlined the history of rent reductions in the market and 
compared rates across Lancashire.  He referred to the changes that had been applied after 
lockdown and efforts that had been made to mitigate the impact of the pandemic on the 
markets.  He pointed out that proposals for change had come from the market traders 
themselves and explained the difficulties faced by changes in shopping habits to the retail 
industry.  The Committee was informed of the importance of adapting and changing to meet 
these challenges and to entice people back to the markets.  He reported that they 
encouraged traders to promote themselves online as much as they could and this aspect of 
trading was a significant part of new tenancy leases.  He reported that pop up stalls were 
doing really well and were another option to offer people using the market.  Work had also 
been done with the events team and Sunday Markets were successful.  He informed the 
Committee that they had not wanted to make major changes during the present difficult 
times but preferred to let things settle down before planning any further changes.   
 
The Chair referred to reduced capacity due to works taking place and asked if this would 
continue. 
 

Page 4



 
 
 

 

 
3 

Councillor Cox explained that the Market Traders had raised the issue of capacity outside 
the market hall and they had worked with them to improve the situation. 
 
Steve Riley explained that Traders signed up to leases lasting 3 years with a 6 month break 
clause.  The Committee was informed that all leases lasted the same length of time.  
Further information was also provided on the different payment options.   
 
The Chair asked if payment on the same day was being phased out and if there was any 
scope to use ‘Boost’ to promote the Market Hall.   Councillor Cox agreed that payment on 
the same day was being phased out and that they had done a lot a work with the press to 
advertise the market in a positive way.  He indicated that they were aiming to attract 
younger people to the market by providing social space and food places.  The aim was to 
provide experiences and offer something different. 
 
Steve Riley referred to proposal to increase footfall through town centre events but advised 
of the financial risks of putting events on in the town centre which later, may have to be 
cancelled due to the pandemic.     
 
Councillor Cox referred to efforts they had made to look at how other towns were promoting 
and managing their markets for ideas and to use best practice from this.   
 
Resolved - That the report be noted. 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

Signed:…………………………………………… 
 

Date: …………….………………………………………… 
 

Chair of the meeting 
At which the minutes were confirmed 

 
 

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank



 

REPORT TO: Resources Overview & Scrutiny Committee 

DATE: 09 September 2021 

PORTFOLIO: Cllr Joyce Plummer - Resources 

REPORT AUTHOR: Joe McIntyre 

Deputy Chief Executive 

TITLE OF REPORT: Financial Position  

Reserve Levels 31st March 2021 

EXEMPT REPORT  
(Local Government 
Act 1972, Schedule 
12A)  

No Not applicable 

KEY DECISION: No If yes, date of publication:  

 

1. Purpose of Report 
 
1.1. The report informs the Committee of the financial reserves of the Council up to the 

end of March 2021.  

2. Recommendations  
 
2.1. The Committee note the report. 

3. Reasons for Recommendations and Background 
 

Summary  
 

3.1. The Council holds a range of Reserves for a variety of reasons.  The actual number 
and value fluctuates over the year as monies are spent on projects, new money is 
received from funders (most often from Government but not exclusively) and new 
reserves are created to respond to changing financial pressures.  The Reserves are 
held as funding for specific projects, against known or potential expenditure or to 
meet future costs or allow for service developments and to allow value for money 
improvements. 

  

Page 7

Agenda Item 3.



 
Detail 

 
 

3.2. Like all well-run financial organisations, the Council holds financial reserves.  These 
are sums that are not part of the annual income and expenditure plans and are held 
separately to be deployed in particular circumstances. 

 

3.3. The level of reserves held are reported as part of the Annual Accounts and are 
subject to External Audit each year. 

3.4. Reserves can be held for any specific or earmarked purposes or can be general and 
the range of reasons for the creation and maintenance of a reserve can be 
widespread.  The Council currently holds over 70 separate reserves as at the 31st 
March 2021. (See Appendix 1.) with a total value in excess of £16m.  The number 
and value of reserves will fluctuate over the years and during any particular financial 
year, with new reserves being created when appropriate and other reserves 
disappearing when the funding within them has been used or the purpose for which 
they were created disappears. 

3.5. The Council’s Section 151 Officer is responsible for ensuring that the Council has 
adequate reserves to meet its potential commitments and to ensure they are properly 
used in line with their intended purpose.  Our External Auditors review the levels of 
reserves held each year and determine whether in their view they are at an adequate 
level.   

3.6. There is increased scrutiny in this area from Auditors and the Government over 
recent years due to the number of Councils indicating they are facing severe financial 
problems and are no longer able to finance their current budget and do not have 
sufficient reserves to draw upon, so as to meet emergency pressures or assist them 
transition to a new core cost base of operation. 

3.7. While there may be a wide range of specific or earmarked reserves, they will mostly 
broadly fit into the following categories, 

 

a) Funds received from Government for a specific ringfenced purpose where 
expenditure is expected to take place over multiple financial years.  Recent 
examples include the large sums of grants advanced to the Council to make 
business grants to help businesses impacted by COVID 19 and funds to make 
payments to those individuals who are self-isolating and meet certain criteria.  
However, the Council will be in receipt of a numbers of grants at any one time from 
the Government , some of high value and others relating to small sums of money 
for a plethora of one-off schemes or regular annual funding related to potentially 
sporadic expenditure commitments, such as Community Right to Buy scheme, 
where when expenditure does occur it will be substantially more than we ever 
receive in any particular year from the Government, but hopefully the cumulative 
amount will offset it, either in full or partially. 

Page 8



b) Funds from other bodies such at the various lottery awarding bodies, the Forestry 
Commission, the Local Government Association, heritage organisations and 
previously European Union funding in support of particular schemes, projects or the 
delivery of specified outcomes etc. 

c) Funds from Businesses to the Council to meet certain costs or undertake projects 
or improvements, often linked to the building of new homes, commercial, retail or 
industrial developments.  These are known as Section 106 funds and the criteria for 
how they are used are legally agreed between the Developer or Business and the 
Council. 

d) Funds held against a potential contractual obligation that the Council has 
undertaken and would not be able to finance from its Annual Budget if it became 
due.  An example here is the Reserve created when the Council transferred its 
housing stock to Hyndburn Homes, which later merged with other Housing 
Associations to eventually form Contour Housing.  At the point of the transfer, the 
Council agreed that should any of the land transferred subsequently prove to be 
polluted and require an environmental remedy or should pollution on any of this 
land damage adjacent land, the Council would meet the cost of any remediation of 
that land.  Potential costs could run into millions of pounds and therefore a reserve 
was created to meet these costs should they occur. 

e) Funds created to meet other specific legal costs or potential costs that might occur.  
We have a dilapidation reserve to meet the cost of any large-scale failure within our 
property portfolio that requires immediate significant attention, either under our 
obligations as a tenant or landlord. 

f) Funds set aside by the Council for specific purposes.  The largest element of this is 
for Capital Expenditure.  Some of these funds are ringfenced to specific capital 
projects and others are receipts from the sale of land, buildings or other assets or 
capital grants from Government or where one-off or short-term grants have been 
made available to the Council and we have chosen not to include them within the 
base level of Revenue spend, such as New Homes Bonus.  The Council has also 
over the years made budgetary and other decisions to create specific Reserves to 
set money aside for future spending projects and commitments.  Examples of this 
type of reserve include the funding set aside for continued Area Councils activity 
after the decision was taken to end the previous arrangements. 

g) Funds created to recognise the mismatch in expenditure and income on various 
projects and undertakings, to allow the smoothing of these two different cash flows 
and ensure that the impacts do not cause distortions to the annual accounts.  
Examples would include any new trading activities such as Green Waste Collection. 

h) Funds held to smooth the impact of changes in the flows of business rates due to 
changes in government rules around the collection of business rates, such as the 
granting of reliefs and the payment of Section 31A grants as compensation. 

i) Funds set aside from surpluses to meet the costs of additional in -year financial 
pressures experienced in subsequent financial years and to provide up front 
finance for invest to save proposals that would otherwise not be funded and the 

Page 9



opportunity lost to deliver improvements and cost savings in the Council’s 
operations. 

3.8. A general reserve to cover the range of potential adverse financial impact from a wide 
variety of events and risks the Council faces from its activities which could not be 
funded from within the normal annual budget should these occur.  The type of events 
are listed in the Council’s Medium Term Financial Strategy but the list is not 
exhaustive.  The financial impacts stemming from COVID 19 being the most obvious 
recent major example of a financial impact not listed and which has demonstrated the 
need for the maintenance of strong reserves, to allow the Council to deal with a surge 
in expenditure in a controlled manner and not require it to immediately go into crisis 
mode to balance its overall financial position. 

3.9. The level in each reserve will be determined by the funder if it is awarded for a 
specific purpose, adjusted for any spend against the specific project that has occurred 
and been financed from the Reserve.  In other areas, the amount will be determined 
by an assessment of the potential spend to be incurred or the level of risk of an event 
occurring. It would always be financially prudent to ensure reserves will cover the full 
amount of any potential call upon them, but financial prudence has to be weighed 
against the funds available and the likelihood of events occurring and the ability to 
review the level of reserves on an on-going basis. 

3.10. It took the Council a considerable period after the financial difficulties it faced in 
2003/2004 to build its financial reserves up from zero to the current levels.  The 
amounts now in reserves should provide the Council with confidence that it can 
withstand a number of financial challenges without being forced immediately into 
making serious reductions in its services or its workforce in order to remain financially 
viable.  This will allow the Council to avoid having to make a Section 114 notice that it 
faces financial peril.  This ensures that decisions over services and staffing levels 
remain local decisions and sudden and dramatic reductions are not forced upon us 
because of a rapidly worsening financial position.  However, as COVID 19 has shown 
us over the last 18 month, the potential for significant events do exist and coping with 
them can be a major challenge even when reserves have been established at a good 
level. 

 

 

4. Alternative Options considered and Reasons for Rejection 
 

4.1. Not applicable.  This report is for information purposes. 

5. Consultations 
 
5.1. Not applicable  

Page 10



6.  Implications 
 

Financial implications (including 
any future financial commitments 
for the Council) 
 

As outlined in the report. 

Legal and human rights 
implications 
 

Not applicable 

Assessment of risk 
 

Not applicable  

Equality and diversity implications 
A Customer First Analysis should be 
completed in relation to policy 
decisions and should be attached as 
an appendix to the report.  
 

Not applicable 

 
 

7. Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985: List of Background 
Papers  

 
 
 
  

Page 11

http://hyntranet/index.php?option=com_remository&Itemid=80&func=startdown&id=1407


Appendix 1 
 

 
 

Earmarked Reserves    

   Closing 

   Balance 

   31 March 21 

LSVT Environmental Warranties   -3,015,782.86 

Transition grant revenue   -802,849.72 

S106    

Tesco Great Harwood   -32,933.25 

Wind Farm   -88,260.00 

Lynwood Rd Bett Homes   -70,157.00 

Lynwood Rd Elite Homes   -11,444.64 

Aldi Great Harwood   -9,304.14 

Hambledon Mill   -60,000.00 

Newton Drive Manchester Road   -14,880.00 

Harwodd Lane Great Harwood   -18,000.00 

Parker St Rishton   -50,000.00 

RHODEN RD, OSW S106   -72,813.00 

FOXWOOD CHASE S106   -83,483.86 

FORMER CHURCH BANK WORKS 
S106 

  -5,732.56 

ACCRINGTON NORI S106   -5,000.00 

BROADFIELD GARAGE S106   -17,403.00 

WOOD ST GT HWD S106   -62,369.00 

PHOENIX 1D S106   -5,583.00 

NORMAN ROAD S106    -32,534.00 

Sub total s106   -639,897.45 

Planning Delivery Grant   -25,972.48 

Area Based Grant   -39,760.06 

Performance Reward Grant 
Revenue 

  -4,307.31 

Dilapidations Reserve   -1,316,000.00 

Invest to Save/Underspends    -1,087,441.34 

Efficiency Support Grant   -308,179.72 

Communities for Health Funding   -41,295.07 

Communities for Health Funding    -14,184.03 

Huncoat Garden Village Housing 
Zone 

  -84,469.67 

Business Rates funding for capital   -1,127,322.00 

Page 12



Green waste    -84,545.18 

Other    

Community Safety Partnership   -8,104.54 

Communities Right To Bid   -4,873.00 

Communities Right To Challenge   -25,641.00 

Freeholds - HMR   -123,459.78 

HAG Reserves   -4,527.38 

Assets of Community Value   -7,855.00 

Communities Right to Buy   -7,855.00 

LG Open Data Funding   -2,000.00 

Summer Fun   -1,226.50 

Transparency Code Setup   -38,027.00 

Property Searches New Burdens   -37,452.57 

Integrity Funding   -7,969.00 

Peel Park Forestry Grant   -19,670.20 

Woodnook/ Rothwell Forestry Grant   -17,212.85 

Clayton Forest Revenue Grant   -5,307.19 

Jackhouse Woodland Imp Grant   -400.71 

Brownfield Register   -33,817.00 

DCLG Custom Build   -23,276.00 

Flexible Homelessness Support   -35,177.62 

Asset disposal transition   -100,000.00 

Invest to Save Fund   -0.21 

Housing Revenue Grants   -52,489.69 

Council Tax Reform   -61,925.47 

Implementing Welfare Reform   610.00 

Council Tax Support New Burdens 
Funding 

  -158,168.00 

Bradshaw Street Aftercare   -6,763.00 

Roegreave Rd Playground 
Maintenance 

  -71,075.45 

Within Grove West Aftercare   -3,784.00 

Within Grove East Aftercare   -10,000.00 

Spouthouse Maintenance   -8,204.76 

EU Exit Funding Reserve   -6,328.98 

Vehicle Insurance Fund   -7,724.00 

Covid-19 Grant Reserve   -347,871.81 

Economic Development Fund   -185,000.00 

Community Champion Funding   -111,538.16 

Test & Trace Payments   -17,064.00 

Selective Licensing     -3,711.56 

Page 13



Total Other   -1,554,891.43 

Business Rates Volatility Reserve   -368,611.00 

S31 Future Years NDR Deficit 
Reserve 

  -3,316,498.00 

Dividend Reserve   -600,000.00 

Total Earmarked Reserve   -14,432,007.32 

General Fund Reserve   -2,351,455.52 

Total    -16,783,462.84 

 
 

Page 14



Page 1 of 27 
 

REPORT TO: Resources Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

DATE: 9th September 2021 

REPORT AUTHOR: Stuart Sambrook (Policy Manager) 

TITLE OF REPORT: Performance Review 20/21 (KPIs) 

EXEMPT REPORT  
(Local Government 
Act 1972, Schedule 
12A)  

No Not applicable 

KEY DECISION: No If yes, date of publication:  

 
  
1. Purpose of Report 
 

To update the Committee on the Council’s latest performance review which monitors 
service area performance against key priorities set out in the Corporate Strategy using 
key performance indicators (KPIs) which can be linked up to corporate priorities whilst 
trying to achieve the Council’s aims and objectives. 

 
2. Recommendations  
 
2.1 That the Committee endorse and support the approach being taken in Hyndburn to 

meet the requirements.  
 
2.2 Members are asked to reflect on the current set of performance indicators and 

consider whether they articulate the Council’s priorities and examine their performance 
by scrutinising their outcomes against their target in delivering actions set out in the 
Corporate Strategy. 

 
2.3 Consider whether actions taken by Officers are deemed sufficient or whether they 

should be recommended to the Scrutiny Committee for further assessment. 
 
 
3. Background 
 
3.1 The Corporate Strategy covers the main strategic objectives for the Council covering 

the period 2018 to 2023. A report was brought to the Council’s Management Team 
(CMT) in late January 2020, suggesting some amendments as part of the planned 
annual refresh. The action arising was “to check the delegation around a major change 
in the Corporate Strategy re Environment and Climate Change”. This work did not 
progress as planned since the Covid-19 pandemic came shortly after this. Additionally, 
a follow up report went to CMT in May 2021 to provide an update on progress and 
seek further direction and clarification.  

Page 15

Agenda Item 4.



Page 2 of 27 
 

4. Corporate Priorities 
 

4.1 When peer reviewing Performance Management, it is recommended that the reviews 
align with the key performance information found in the corporate priorities. The 
Council’s Corporate Strategy is a strategy for growth, efficiency and quality with a 
vision of driving growth and prosperity in Hyndburn and these priorities, represented in 
Appendix A, show progress against the action. 

 
4.2 The Corporate Strategy has a number of priorities and actions. All Service Managers 

were asked (April / May 2021) to update their actions and provide commentary. Some 
of the actions in the current Strategy have now been completed and highlighted in 
Appendix A.  
 

4.3 The current actions sit within the following themes: 
 

 A Strategy for Growth 

 A Strategy for Efficiency 

o Maintaining Effective Financial Management 
o Improving Efficiency Through the Use of Technology 
o Efficient use of Land & Property 

 A Strategy for Quality 

o Improving Quality of Life 
o Improving Quality of Services & Facilities 

 
4.4 The Council plans on reviewing and updating the Corporate Strategy because it does 

not reflect on some of the current priorities such as the Climate Change Emergency 
and recent town centre regeneration and “Levelling Up”. The Corporate priorities, aims 
and objectives will need to reflect and align to these new additions.  

 
5 Performance Indicators (KPIs) 

 
5.1 The current set of Performance Indicators were initially developed in 2018 and revisited 

at a session looking at our Corporate Strategy in November 2019. This informed some 
of the proposed revisions and was planned as part of a wider strategy of better 
engaging staff at all levels in our strategic objectives via a series of briefing sessions 
and through our internal communications. Again, this was overtaken by Covid-19. 
Service Managers were asked to submit PIs every 6 months. However, the Policy team 
only had a partial response in mid-2020 and these were not actively chased because of 
the additional pressures relating to the pandemic. We do not therefore have a full set of 
up to date KPIs 2019/20, but the data for 2020/21 is shown in Appendix B and info 
graphs below. 
 

5.2 The Performance Report (Appendix B) contains information relating to the performance 
of the Council against key performance indicators and considers the performance of a 
range of indicators against set targets. Effective performance management monitoring 
arrangements will assist the Council in diverting resources to areas or services where it 
is considered to be a greater priority.  

 

Page 16



Page 3 of 27 
 

 
5.3 Examples of the latest 2020/21 KPIs in visual info graph form can be seen below: 
 

 

Page 17



Page 4 of 27 
 

 

Page 18



Page 5 of 27 
 

 

Page 19



Page 6 of 27 
 

 

Page 20



Page 7 of 27 
 

 

Page 21



Page 8 of 27 
 

 

Page 22



Page 9 of 27 
 

 

Page 23



Page 10 of 27 
 

6 Key Achievements (non KPI) for 2020/21 
 

6.1 The pandemic has brought many changes to the way we work and deliver services, 

and has strengthened relationships with a range of partners, especially locally through 

the Hyndburn Hub. It is still unclear how 2021/22 will pan out in terms of restrictions or 

what the financial impact will be and future ways of working. There has been a huge 

focus over the last year on working more closely with our community and this 

continues. Local economic recovery and seeking to benefit from “levelling up” and town 

centre funding will need to be reflected in future performance reviews, but below is a 

list of key achievements delivered by the Council and partners over the past year, not 

covered by the KPIs but none the less very important work carried out to help benefit 

the community and the wider determinants of health while dealing with a pandemic. 

 

 Established and managed the Hyndburn Hub within a week, bringing together 
partner organisations and individuals from across the borough and providing 
responsive wrap-around support to our residents.  This helped clinically extremely 
vulnerable residents to stay safe at home by establishing an operational Covid hub 
in a week, providing thousands of meals, shopping services, and medicine 
collections and more. 

 Secured £2 million external funding for the Decarbonisation Scheme. 

 Achieved One Carbon World Neutral Gold Standard by reducing its carbon 
footprint. 

 £492,000 Community Champions award (highest amount across Lancashire) to 
support community engagement and those who have suffered the worst impact of 
the pandemic.  This included several grants to local organisations and the 
provision of wellbeing support packages 

 Queen Awards for Voluntary Services in Hyndburn with Maundy Relief and 
Community Solutions; 

 Business Compliance promoting good practice amongst premises, preventing 
outbreaks from premises and require high standards of control measures, and 
protect public from unacceptable risks through strong enforcement. 

 Providing equipment to allow Working from Home opportunities to many 
employees to work from home in line with government guidance, reducing 
workplace infection and safeguarding our critical services. 

 Online Council meeting transition despite obstacles ensuring that the democratic 
process could continue during periods of restriction and that attendees could 
participate safely. 

 Revenue and Creditors teams were very busy throughout pandemic supporting our 
businesses, designing and delivering new Covid-19 related grants to businesses 
and were nationally recognised at press conference from Downing Street for their 
excellent performance. 

 Licensing team updated their procedures so that all taxi and private hire 
applications can be completed online. 

 CVMU created a new taxi driver non-contact waiting areas to ensure taxi testing 
follows a socially distanced system. 

Page 24



Page 11 of 27 
 

 Taxi screens offered to taxi’s: these offer protection against the virus as well as a 
really effective and simple way for us to promote key messages. 

 Supporting contact tracing and vaccination uptake. 

 Helped clinically extremely vulnerable residents to stay safe at home by 
establishing an operational Covid hub in a week, providing thousands of meals, 
shopping services and medicine collections. 

 Supported local businesses with over £30m in urgent grants by being the fastest 
district authority nationally for the provision of initial critical financial aid. 

 Reduced the number of households living in cold homes due to winter fuel poverty 
by providing support for fuel payments as well as essential household goods to 
keep families and individuals warm. 

 Reduced food insecurity for hundreds of households by establishing a food 
solutions network, distributing funding to local food banks and began exploring 
contemporary food insecurity policies with the aim of reducing food insecurity in 
Hyndburn in the longer term. 

 Alleviated loneliness and isolation felt by our vulnerable residents by making 
hundreds of out-bound calls including over the Christmas period to check in a chat 
and ensure that no one was hungry, cold or lonely. 

 Help set up the Hyndburn Community Champions Action Network which meets 
every fortnight, it includes 90 people, representing 51 groups and organisations. 

 The Hyndburn Hub won the Pride of Hyndburn category at the Hyndburn Business 
Awards. 

 

7 Scrutiny  
 
7.1 Members are asked to reflect on the current set of performance indicators and consider 

whether they articulate the Council’s priorities and examine their performance by 
scrutinising their outcomes against their target in delivering actions set out in the 
Corporate Strategy. 

 
7.2 Consider whether actions taken by Officers are deemed sufficient or whether they 

should be recommended to the Scrutiny Committee for further assessment. 
 
7.3 When looking at Peer Reviews in regards Performance Management they recommend 

aligning key performance information with corporate priorities. 
 
7.4 Consider any future ideas for performance indicators such as the following examples: 
 

 All Service areas provide Green KPIs to help with the Council’s Climate Pledge; 

 Foot fall in the town centre; 

 Carbon footprint (Tonnes of CO2 per employee produced); 

 How much paper (tonnes) do we use as a council per year  

 
 
 
8. Alternative Options considered and Reasons for Rejection 
 

Page 25



Page 12 of 27 
 

8.1 Not applicable to this report 
 
9. Consultations 
 
9.1 Not applicable to this report 
 
10. Implications 
 

Financial implications (including 
any future financial commitments 
for the Council) 
 

N/A for this report 

Legal and human rights 
implications 
 

Assessment of risk 
 

Equality and diversity implications 
A Customer First Analysis should be 
completed in relation to policy 
decisions and should be attached as 
an appendix to the report.  
 

 
11. Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985: 

List of Background Papers  
 
11.1 N/A 
 

  

Page 26

http://hyntranet/index.php?option=com_remository&Itemid=80&func=startdown&id=1407


Page 13 of 27 
 

Appendix A - Corporate Strategy 2018 to 2023 
 
To deliver these objectives the Council will: (Green text latest May 2021 update) 
  

 Strategy for Growth Relevant 

PI in 

place? 

Progress Lead 

Service 

Head 

G1 Review the Core Strategy 
by 2021 to ensure we have 
an robust and up-to-date 
understanding of 
development needs 
relating to housing, 
employment and retail  

Y – to 

develop 

planning 

policy in 

accordance 

with the 

timescale set 

out within 

LDS 

Public consultation completed in 2019 

in accordance with the Council’s 

published timetable in its Local 

Development Scheme 

LDS to be updated later in 2021 to 

reflect anticipated timescales. Single 

plan to be produced (Local Plan 

Strategic Policies and Site Allocations 

DPD). Currently working towards 

Regulation 19 (Publication) 

consultation, which is likely to take 

place early 2022.  Adoption likely to be 

late 2022/early 2023. Timescales will 

be confirmed in revised LDS. 

SP 

G2 Adopt a new Site 
Allocations Development 
Plan and Infrastructure 
Delivery Plan by 2021  

Public consultation completed in 2019 

in accordance with the Council’s 

published timetable in its Local 

Development Scheme 

Site Allocations to be included in single 

plan with progress as set out at G1. 

SP 

G3 Work with the Homes and 
Communities Agency, 
Lancashire County 
Council, Infrastructure 
providers, local residents 
and other stakeholders to 
complete the Huncoat 
Garden Village masterplan 
Framework and Delivery 
Strategy by July 2021. 

N Project renamed “Huncoat Garden 
Village” (HGV) masterplan Framework 
and Delivery Strategy.  A revised  
timetable aims for the project to be 
completed July 2021.   
 
Following the conclusion of Stages 1 
and 2 and an analysis of constraints 
and viability the HGV Steering Group 
concluded a residential only should be 
developed.  This has required 
additional baseline work and Option 
development work which has been 
concluded.   
 
Residents and stakeholders were 
consulted on the preferred option for 
Huncoat Garden Village in June 2021, 
with work now progressing to complete 
the Masterplan and Delivery Plan. 
 

MH 

Page 27



Page 14 of 27 
 

In the meantime, owners of the former 
power station site are preparing an 
outline planning application for housing 
for Autumn 2021.   
 
In addition, HBC in conjunction with 
Homes England are working on a 
business case to make a land and 
infrastructure bid. 

G4 Complete the Woodnook 
Phase 2 project including 
remodelling and 
refurbishment of the final 
28 properties and 
facelifting of an additional 
104 properties by August 
2020. 

N Completed December 2017. We are 
now working on the last phase of the 
Phase 2 properties completing the final 
28 properties in phase 2 and carrying 
out an additional 104 facelifts – started 
on site, aim to be completed August 
2020. 
 
Project complete 

MH 

G5 Complete a review of the 
Accrington Town Centre 
Action Plan by 2021  
 
Proposed revision – or 
remove entirely from this 
Corporate Strategy? 
 
Following the adoption of 
the Core Strategy Review 
and Site Allocations DPDs, 
review the Accrington 
Town Centre Action Plan. 
 

N Our position on the Accrington AAP is 

that this will be looked at again 

following the adoption of the Core 

Strategy Review and Site Allocations 

DPDs. 

Initial scoping exercise undertaken in 

Sept 2018 concluded that the AAP 

policies did not need to be updated.  

Matter to be re-visited following 

adoption of Strategic Policies and Site 

Allocations DPD and national planning 

guidance. 

SP 

G6 Deliver a programme of 
improvements along the 
main access route 
(Blackburn Road) in to 
Accrington town centre to 
improve the accessibility 
and visual appearance of 
the streetscape and shop 
fronts to attract people to 
the town centre and 
support local businesses  

N THI Shop Grants rate upto 90% and 

Heritage Lottery have been asked to 

extend deadline until September 2020. 

Programme fully committed 7 on site; 3 

with grant applications with legal to 

complete which we know means they 

will be on site in the next few weeks. 

We have £56,598 left and are liaising 

with potential premises within the THI 

Boundary that could take up the 

remaining funding. 

Project complete subject to release of 

retention monies to grantees. 

MH / HMM 

Page 28



Page 15 of 27 
 

G7 Work to deliver a year on 

year increase in the 

number of housing 

completions delivered in 

the Borough aiming to 

achieve the housing 

targets defined in the Local 

Development Framework. 

To support this we will 

work with relevant partners 

to progress the 

development and 

completion of: 

 Lyndon Park 

(Due to be 

complete April 

2021); Sales 

have slowed 

down due to 

market 

conditions, but 

development 

continues to 

progress 

 Rishton Canal 

Side (Parker 

Street 

complete);  

 Clayton 

Triangle 

(Stalled); Iain 

Watson Homes 

pulling new 

development for 

affordable 

housing in 

partnership with 

Onward Homes 

together with 

the 3 land 

owners who are 

progressing 

with land sales.  

Planning 

application for 

114 units being 

prepared. 

 Woodnook Vale 

Y – no. of 

new housing 

completions 

Completions 2017/18 – 101 net 

additional units; 2018/19 – 174 net 

additional units. Units currently being 

deliver on 2 of the 4 listed sites - 

Lyndon Park and Rishton Canal Side. 

Next 3 years 700 units in the pipeline 

i.e. 230 per annum 

Net additional units delivered: 

                2019/20:               170          

                2020/21:               182 

Lyndon Park – still under construction 

at 31/3/21 (166 completed to date) 

completion expected by March 2022. 

Rishton Canalside (Parker St) – 

complete 

No planning progress on Woodnook 

Vale (Places First have disposed of it 

to new owner) and Clayton Triangle. 

Currently 713 new homes under 
development on 11 medium / large 
sites.  Sites where development 
recently got underway (2021): 
 

 Phoenix 1D, Accrington 
(Keepmoat) – 48 units 

 Ribblesdale Avenue, Accrington 
(Countryside) – 97 units 

 The Shires, Oswaldtwistle 
(Persimmon) – 69 units 

 Former Britannia Mill, Rishton 
(Onward) – 59 units 

 Yorkshire St, Huncoat 
(Onward)– 14 units 

 
Disposal of Miller Fold to Gleeson 
Homes is due to complete before the 
end of June 2021 (48 units). 

SP/MH 

Page 29



Page 16 of 27 
 

(Places First in 

discussions to 

sell) Site not 

viable and now 

in new 

ownership. 

 Proposed addition: 

 Ensure that all 

strategic decisions, 

budgets and 

approaches to 

planning decisions 

are in line with a 

shift to zero carbon 

by 2030. 

   

 Strategy for 
Efficiency - 
Maintaining 
Effective Financial 
Management 

Relevant 

PI in 

place? 

Progress Lead 

Service 

Head 

E1 Present a balanced budget 
each year and operate 
within budget during the 
year 

N Forecast small underspend in 19/20 
(£80k as at end of Sept.) and over 
£400k in 17/18 and 18/19 achieved.  
2020/21 as seen in MTFS to 13/11/19 
Cabinet shows a balanced budget. The 
Council anticipates always a balanced 
budget and proven record of making 
difficult decisions to ensure this – e.g. 
significant savings identified to offset 
£821k loss of waste cost share 
agreement income in 2018/19. 
 

JM/DD 

Page 30



Page 17 of 27 
 

E2 Undertake a review of the 
use of the Council’s 
Reserves 

Y – Absolute 

Value Level of 

Reserves at 

year-end 

expressed as 

a percentage 

compared to 

Annual 

Budget 

Reserves are regularly reviewed. The 

updated MTFS reported twice yearly 

considers levels of reserves. Specific 

reserves are monitored on a monthly 

basis. 

JM/DD 

E3 Put in place a Medium 
Term Capital Financial 
Strategy by March 2019 
 
COMPLETED 

N Achieved and included in the TM 

Strategy in February 2019. 

JM/DD 

E4 Maintain reserves at a level 
defined in the Medium 
Term Financial Strategy 

N This has been achieved to date and 

work will continue to ensure that levels 

are maintained in accordance with 

agreed MTFS. 

JM/DD 

E5 Develop a sustainable plan 
for managing a reduction in 
excess of £800,000 to the 
waste services budget 
which will include:  
Developing a programme 
for the introduction of 2 
recycling bins for 36,500 
properties across the 
borough and start  

 roll out by June 

2018; and  

 Introducing 

charging for garden 

waste. 
 

COMPLETED 

N To achieve the required savings, the 
Council implemented a change from 
recycling bags and boxes to wheeled 
bins.  This has improved the service, 
the cleanliness of the borough and 
requires fewer staff. 
 
The new subscription service 
commenced 1st August 2017 and for 
each collection year around 5,000 - 
5,500 households (from a potential 
13,000) have subscribed to the annual 
service. Cost of the annual service has 
remained the same at £30 per bin. 

SR 

E6 Implement improvements 
to Council Tax and 
Business Rates collection 
to achieve 96% collection 
levels by March 2021 

 
 

Y – Council 

Tax / NNDR 

Collection 

Rate  

Council Tax 2020/2021 final outturn 

was 2.66% lower than that of the in-

year target.  The pandemic has 

impacted collection rates as recovery 

options were restricted by Government 

as no Magistrates Court operated for 

Liability Order hearings. 

Business Rates 2020/2021 final outturn 

was 6.68% lower than that of the in-

year target.  The pandemic has 

impacted collection rates as recovery 

options were restricted by Government 

as no Magistrates Court operated for 

Liability Order hearings. 

PD 

Page 31



Page 18 of 27 
 

E7 Improve recovery of 

outstanding Council Tax, 

Business Rates and other 

debt where all usual 

enforcement options have 

failed  

 

 

REMOVE from document 

as per my comments in my 

email above. (PD) 

N The Collection and Recovery Policy 

was updated and approved by Cabinet 

in October 2018. 

The policy now reflects incremental 

changes made to day to day practices 

since 2015.  The updated policy aims 

to support our administrative practices, 

streamline our operation and provide 

for the efficient and effective collection 

of local taxes. 

Vulnerability criteria has been removed 

from the previous policy and extended 

in a separate Vulnerability Policy. 

PD 

E8 Ensure all relevant 

services are self-financing 

by undertaking regular 

reviews of fees and 

charges 

Y – Fees & 

Charges 

Income – 

against value 

and 

percentage of 

budget 

This occurs each year as part of the 

budget process. 

DD 

E9 Identify opportunities and 

implement measures to 

increase service income 

JM: 

This refers to changing the 

investment strategy on the 

Pension Fund. We don’t 

control the investment 

strategy for the pension 

fund this is done by a 

separate organisation. So 

having an objective to 

change it not appropriate in 

our corporate plan. 

N Fees and charges have been 

increased where appropriate to reflect 

increasing costs. 

New income generating measures 

have included green waste charges. 

JM/DD 

 Proposed addition(s): 

 Ensure that all 

reports in 

preparation for the 

2020/21 budget 

cycle and 

investment strategy 

will take into 

account the actions 

the council will take 

to address the 

Climate emergency. 

   

Page 32



Page 19 of 27 
 

 Report on the level 

of investment in the 

fossil fuel industry 

that our pensions 

plan and other 

investments have, 

and review the 

Council’s 

investment strategy 

to give due 

consideration to 

climate change 

impacts in the 

investment 

portfolio. 

NEW Proposed addition(s): 

Commence with the move 

from diesel combustion 

engines vehicles to pure 

Electric vehicles across the 

Council fleet where 

possible and financially 

acceptable. 

N Charging infrastructure to be installed 

at Willows Lane Office depot and 

Vehicle Maintenance unit in Church 

which will facilitate the change of 

approx. 10 small / medium sized vans 

within 12 to 18 months.  

Infrastructure and electrification of the 

Council’s larger HGV vehicles to be 

considered as and when replacements 

are due. 

MA/SR/CH 

 Strategy for 

Efficiency - 

Improving 

Efficiency Through 

the Use of 

Technology 

Relevant 

PI in 

place? 

Progress Lead 

Service 

Head 

E10 Increase take up of e-
services for revenues and 
benefits services for:  

 Council Tax 

from 27% to 

40%;   

 Business 

Rates 29% to 

40%;  

 On-line 

applications 

for Housing 

Benefit and 

Council Tax 

Support from 

N At 31 March 2021: 

 

 Council Tax from 27% to - 41.8% 

 Business Rates 29% to - 42% 

 On-line applications for Housing 

Benefit and Council Tax Support 

from 45% to 50% - 41.4% 

 Change of Circumstances to 10% 

– 9.2% 

The global pandemic has impacted on 

performance figures during 2020-21.  

Whilst we continue to see an increase 

in the take up of e-billing for Council 

Tax and Business Rates, other areas 

PD 

Page 33



Page 20 of 27 
 

45% to 65%; 

and Change of 

Circumstance

s to 10%.  

have not grown to the estimated 

figures.  This is attributable to new 

claims for Universal Credit linking to 

increase Council Tax Support Claims 

being received direct from DWP 

through the file transfer programme.  

Traditionally customers would have 

accessed Hyndburn’s online forms to 

make the appropriate claims for 

support. 

 

Housing Benefit recipients have 

reported less changes in 

circumstances during 2020-21.  The 

pandemic has led to fewer customers 

moving accommodation and changing 

jobs as well as households 

compositions remaining static, 

resulting in less reported changes to 

the local authority via on-line channels. 

E11 Expand use of mobile 
technology to improve 
efficiency of staff operating 
on-site:  

 Pest Control  

 Environmental 

Enforcement  

 Food Safety 

and Hygiene 

Inspections  

N Environmental enforcement in place.  

Food Safety still in test stage. 

Mobile working to be rolled out as part 

of the ‘Replacement of the Council’s 

CRM system project’ which was 

approved for this financial year 

2021/22 

CB/SR 

E12 Increase the level 
virtualisation of the IT 
servers from 75% to 90% by 
2020. 
 

N 80% by end 2019 CB 

E13 Move towards Cloud based 
infrastructure and software 
services to reduce operating 
costs, increase flexibility and 
improve service resilience:  

 Introduce a cloud-

based back-up 

solution by 

December 2020  

 Investigate benefits 

of cloud based Office 

software by 

December 2018. 

Y – 

Increase in 

transference 

of services 

to Cloud 

where 

viable. 

Potential software identified through 

ongoing Software Inventory. Income 

Management replacement to be cloud-

based (Jan 2020). 

CB 

Page 34



Page 21 of 27 
 

E14 Continue to reduce and 
rationalise IT hardware. 
 

N Server reduction from 30 to 20 by end 

of 2019. Removal of 1 superfluous 

tape drive due to move to cloud 

backups – remaining tape drive to be 

decommissioned mid-2020. 

Replacement of both air con units in 

Server Room in favour more efficient, 

modern units. 

CB 

E15 Evaluate and implement 
more cost-effective mobile, 
landline, broadband and IT 
consumable contracts. 

N Completed review of telephony, mobile 

and broadband contracts making 

significant savings in all 3 areas. Move 

to SIP trunking for landlines from June 

2020 will reduce landline bills by a 

further 33%. IT consumables ongoing. 

CB 

Page 35



Page 22 of 27 
 

 Strategy for 
Efficiency - Efficient 
Use of Land and 
Property 

Relevant 

PI in 

place? 

Progress Lead 

Service 

Head 

E16 Identify and develop 
opportunities to transfer 
assets in to community 
control where this will 
provide a sustainable and 
beneficial use of the asset 
for the future.  

Y – Asset 

disposal / 

transfer 

Most community buildings have already 

been transferred to community groups. 

Unfortunately two are coming back to 

us (Mercer House and Arthur Wilson 

Centre) when Mercer 1842, a company 

established to run them, will be 

dissolved at their application by 

Companies House, in March. The 

Oswaldtwistle Theatre run by Hyndburn 

Arts ltd is also in trouble and has 

sought financial assistance from the 

Council but we are aware there may be 

some non-compliance issues and we 

may have to take action if not resolved. 

The truth is they need more monitoring 

than we had previously thought and 

that takes resources so whilst we think 

we are making savings by transferring 

them they are not as great as we think. 

I also think the leases are too long – it’s 

difficult to sustain these groups over a 

long period of time – reality is they are 

generally run by retirees who have lots 

of energy and time to begin with and 

simply run out of steam. Also, they take 

on premises that HBC have carried out 

many improvements too prior to their 

occupation and after 5 -10 years 

suddenly repairs are required. That said 

the buildings and groups serve the 

community well and deliver fantastic 

services at the heart of where they are 

needed. 

Mercer House - Cabinet approved to 

offer a lease to CVS who submitted a 

bid to take occupation of the building in 

July 2020. HOTs are in negotiation and 

once agreed will need to be submitted 

to Charity Commission to seek their 

approval to enter into a lease with CVS. 

Arthur Wilson Centre was handed back 

to the Council following the successful 

application to dissolve Mercer House 

1842.  Prior to that the group simply 

HMM 

Page 36



Page 23 of 27 
 

relinquished control (sent keys through 

post). Community Groups need to take 

advice and understand what is legally 

required of them when they take a 

lease or the Council needs to 

appreciate the limitations of these 

groups  and allocate resources to 

support them to protect users and the 

buildings. This applies to larger groups 

too where building 

management/compliance is very poor. 

E17 Keep under review the 
operational buildings we 
utilise and take necessary 
action to further rationalise 
and reduce the cost of 
operation  

N We are looking at the costs of ALL HBC 

to see if we can consolidate.   This is 

still outstanding and needs to be done 

in light of reduced usage following 

COVID and home working becoming 

widespread and likely to become the 

norm. Covd Safe citer to be factored in 

when calculating work space 

requirements 

HMM 

E18 Dispose of any property at 
an appropriate price that is 
identified as surplus to 
requirement 

Y – Asset 

disposal / 

transfer 

Ongoing work with Disposals Cabinet 

Working Group (Leader Deputy Leader, 

DW, JE, Peter, HMM and surveyors) to 

agree priorities based on surplus, 

opportunities and general enquiries. 

HMM 

NEW Proposed addition(s): 

Review the operational 
buildings we utilise and take 
necessary action to further 
rationalise and reduce the 
cost of operation; and 
dispose of any property 
identified as surplus to 
requirement by 2023. 

 The following operational depot 

buildings will be removed / rationalised 

during 2021/22. 

Lowerfold Park Operation Building – 

Building to be repurposed / upgraded 

and split between local bowling group 

and potential bike club. (old dilapidated 

bowling hut demolished). 

Bullough Park Operational Building – 

To be demolished footprint area 

reinstated by July 2021. 

Accrington Cemetery Depot Buildings – 

Plans to demolish old facilities and 

construct new depot / buildings by 

March 2022. 

CH 

 

Page 37



 

 Strategy for Quality 

- Improving Quality 

of Life  

Relevant 

PI in 

place? 

Progress Lead 

Service 

Head 

Q1 Undertake a review of 
Selective Landlord 
Licensing Scheme by April 
2023  

N Reviewed every five years. Mini review 

planned for Sept / Oct 2020. Scheme 

successfully implemented and within 

budget. Scheme review deferred until 

Autumn 2021. 

MH 

Q2 Provide advice and support 
to relevant businesses to 
increase their Food Hygiene 
Rating and reduce the 
number of businesses 
scoring 0, 1 or 2 Hygiene 
Rating 

 
 

Y – covers 

a number of 

PIs  

Covid lockdown restrictions reduced the 

ability of staff to work with operators. 

However, LAMES return to the Foods 

Standards Agency for 2020/21 showed 

93% of food businesses were complaint 

(79% in 2017). Once Covid restrictions 

are lifted, the food team will start to 

work with the remaining non complaint 

businesses. 

HD 

Q3 Increased enforcement 
activity in line with 
enforcement policy for any 
food businesses who are 
non-compliant to drive 
compliance 
 
 

Y – covers 

a number of 

PIs 

Officers continue to follow the Council’s 

policy of education and assisting 

business operators. However, they 

have and will continue to undertake 

enforcement action where necessary. 

HD 

 Strategy for Quality 
- Improving Quality 
of Services and 
Facilities 

Relevant 

PI in 

place? 

Progress Lead 

Service 

Head 

Q4 Implement improvements to 
the domestic waste and 
recycling service to reduce 
overall service costs, fulfil 
recycling obligations and 
provide a simplified service 
for residents. Service 
changes to be introduced 
by July 2018 
 
COMPLETED 

N Completed  SR 

Q5 Finalise work to the new 
town square in Accrington 
by July 2018 
 

COMPLETED 

N Completed SR 

Page 38



 

Q6 Develop and deliver a 

programme of events to 

promote the Accrington 

Town Centre and the town 

square. Programme to 

commence with the opening 

of the town square and run 

through to September 2019. 

COMPLETED 

Proposed new strategy 

statement: 

Deliver a programme of 

events to promote the re-

opening and welcoming 

back residents into 

Accrington Town Centre 

using the remaining event 

funding from July to March 

2022. 

Y – Held 

events in 

town centre 

Completed SR 

Q7 Deliver a grants programme 

to improve aesthetics and 

restore historical features to 

shops in Accrington to 

complement the new town 

N THI Shop Grants / Heritage Lottery. THI 

Shop Grants rate upto 90% and 

Heritage Lottery have been asked to 

extend deadline until September 2020. 

Programme fully committed and 7 on 

site; 3 with grant applications with legal 

to complete which we khow means they 

will be on site in the next few weeks. 

We have £56,598 left and are liaising 

with potential premises within the THI 

Boundary that could take up the 

remaining funding.    (same as G6) All 

grant monies were allocated with the 

final grant awarded in Dec 2020 after 

the scheme was extended for a final 

time on the condition works were 

finished by March 2021. Some shops 

have underspent their grant 

(contingencies not required) and this 

will not be drawn down from HLF 

unless some extra spend is identified 

during the 6 months defects liability 

periods of each grant. The amount not 

being claimed from HLF is £23,726 as 

the scheme completed and there was 

no time left to spend the remaining 

amounts. 

MH/HMM 

Page 39



 

Q8 Complete the refurbishment 

of Rhyddings Park by May 

2018 

COMPLETED 

N Completed CH 

Q9 Develop and deliver an 

events programme in 

Rhyddings Park by June 

2020 

N Completed CH 

Q10 Retain Green Flag status 

for 8 sites in 2018 and 

secure Green Flag status 

for Rhyddings Park in 2019 

COMPLETED 

Proposed new strategy 

statement: 

Retain Green Flag status 

for the 9 sites that have 

been awarded and work 

toward securing a 10th 

Green Flag for Milnshaw 

Park by 2023. (SR) 

JM: 

Green Flag awards we have 

previously considered 

withdrawing from this 

scheme to save money, as 

while the awards are nice to 

have they are costly, so we 

might want to consider 

downplaying or removing 

this one, in case we do drop 

it. 

 

Y – Number 

of Green 

Flag parks 

held by the 

Council 

Completed CH 

Q11 Secure Heritage Lottery 

Funding to deliver a 

programme of 

improvements to Memorial 

Park by 2023 

N Looking to develop proposals with a 

social enterprise, Sport England, 

Leisure in Hyndburn to identify and 

secure funding within the timescale 

outlined in the corporate strategy 

CH 

Page 40



 

Q12 To support the growth 

objectives within the 

strategy improve the 

management and delivery 

of the pre-application 

planning advice service so 

that it is integrated into the 

development management 

system ensuring responses 

are made within 35 working 

days. 

N  SP 

Q13 Expand the number of 

services offered through 

My.Hyndburn App where 

online payments can be 

made for services:  

 Fixed Penalty 

Notices – January 

2018  

 Pest Control 

services – 

December 2018 

Proposed revision: 

Review the Council’s 
Customer Relationship 
Management platform and 
consider which additional 
services can be offered 
through My.Hyndburn App 
where online payments can 
be made for services by 
date (??) 
 

N Ongoing as review to be made of the 

CRM platform before additional 

services can be brought on board. 

Fixed Penalty Notices Completed 30 

April 2018. Pest Control - Roll out to 

other services placed on hold as the 

Council considers its Customer Contact 

Centre system/software replacement. 

CB 

 Proposed addition: 

 Produce an action 

plan to meet the 

Council’s Climate 

Emergency 

commitments by 

September 2020, 

together with budget 

actions and a 

measured baseline 

 

   

 
 
 

Page 41



This page is intentionally left blank



 

  

Performance Report 20/21 Performance Report 20/21 

Appendix B 

Page 43



  

PERFORMANCE INDICATORS 2020/21 1 

 

 

INDEX Page No. Responsible Officer  
         

Audit  Page 2  Mark Beard   
         

Benefits, Revenues and Contact 

Centre  Page 3  Lee Middlehurst             

Democratic Services  Page 5  Julian Joinson             

Environmental Services  Page 6  Steve Riley            

Finance  Page 15  Dave Donlan            

Governance   Page 18  Jane Ellis             

Policy and OD  Page 20  Kirsten Burnett            

ICT  Page 21  Claire Beattie            

Legal   Page 25  Susan Hedges            

Licensing  Page 28  Wendy Redfern            

Planning  Page 29  Simon Prideaux            

Regen and Housing  Page 32  Mark Hoyle   

 

  

Page 44



  

PERFORMANCE INDICATORS 2020/21 2 

 

Audit & Investigation 
Performance Measure 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 Target Narrative 

Percentage of the 
Audit Plan Delivered 

94.12% 95.32%  93.35%  96.32% 98% Final out-turn position for 2020/21 
is 96.32%. 

Number  of Audit 
Engagements 
completed compared 
to those planned in the 
Audit Plan 

17 + 3 
wip 
(Target 
29) 

19 + 2 
wip 

12 11 28 The amount of audit work 
completed was directly affected by 
the Pandemic, however, additional 
assurance was sought from 
support / work the Team had 
involvement or advised on during 
the pandemic. 

Number of Audit 
Reports Issued 

17 19  14  12 Should 
=/> 
number 
in Plan 

 

  

Percentage of Audit 
Engagements 
completed within the 
time allocation 

76.47% 89.47%  100%  100% 100%   

Number of Audit 
Recommendations 
made 

24 18  56 8 No Target 

- 
Statistical 
value 

The volume of recommendations 
can fluctuate depending on areas 
audited and whether system 
changes have occurred etc. 

Percentage of Audit 
Recommendations 
agreed for 
implementation by 
Management 

100% 100%  100% 100% 100%   

Non-Compliance / 
Significant Control 
Weaknesses identified 
within Core Financial 
Systems 

0 0  0  0 0   

Number of Financial 
Fraud Investigations 
carried out 

0 4  3  
(1 ongoing) 

 1 No Target 
- 
Statistical 
value 

  

Number of Staff 
Related Fraud 
Investigations carried 
out 

3 5 4 
(1 ongoing) 

4 
 

No Target 
- 
Statistical 
value 

  

Number of Other 
Investigations carried 
out 

1 2  1  1 No Target 
- 
Statistical 
value 

  

  

Page 45



  

PERFORMANCE INDICATORS 2020/21 3 

 

Benefits, Revenues and Contact Centre 
Performance Measures 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 Target Narrative 2020/2021 

Council Tax Collection 
Rate 

94.90% 94.80%  94.89% 93.34% 96% 2020/2021 final outturn was 
2.66% lower than that of the in-
year target.  The pandemic has 
impacted collection rates as 
recovery options were restricted 
by Government as no 
Magistrates Court operated for 
Liability Order hearings. 

NNDR Collection Rate 96.34% 96.80% 97.18% 89.32% 96% 2020/2021 final outturn was 
6.68% lower than that of the in-
year target.  The pandemic has 
impacted collection rates as 
recovery options were restricted 
by Government as no 
Magistrates Court operated for 
Liability Order hearings. 

Direct Debit Take-up 
(Council Tax) 

61.27% 65.93%  68.2% 68.5% 67% Changes to cash payment dates 
and  cancelled Direct Debits has 
contributed to an increase in 
the last 12/18 months 

Direct Debit Take-up 
(NNDR) 

40.54% 45.52%  49.7% 23.32% 47% A decrease in NDR direct debit 
take up as the majority of 
businesses in 2020-21 had no 
rates to pay due to business 
relief afforded due to the 
Pandemic.   

Housing Benefit Appeals  90% 100%  66% 80% 95% 4 of the 5 tribunal cases appeals 
against the Council’s decision  
were found in our favour  – the 
small number of overall cases 
reduces the percentage 
significantly 

HB Processing New Claims 25.01 
days 

22.18 
days 

20.51 
days 

25.87 
days 

23.00 
days 

The service was impacted in the 
first couple of months of the 
first lockdown.  Staff were 
adjusting to working from 
home, together with the 
increase workload for new CTS 
claim as a result of Universal 
Credit.  Had the Service not 
been impacted by the 
Pandemic, then the average 
figures would be similar to last 
year at 20.50 days. The national 
average for new claims is 17.33 
based on 20/21 data up to Q3. 
This PI is increasingly harder to 
achieve as legacy claims move 
to UC and complex claims 
remain with HBC. 

HB Processing Change of 
circs 

7.47 
days 

5.82 
days 

 4.91 
days 

4.32 
days 

  7.00 
days 

The national average for 
changes is 5.66 based on 20/21 
data up to Q3. 

Page 46



  

PERFORMANCE INDICATORS 2020/21 4 

 

Total telephone enquiries 
to the CCC 

210,016 202,925 
(3.4% 
reduction) 

178,975 
– (11.8% 
reduction 
based on 
previous 
year) 

Full year 
statistics 
are not 
available 
due to 
telephone 
upgrade 
without 
reporting 
module 

 2.5% 
reduction 

Comparisons to 2019-20 are not 
possible: we do not have a full 
year of statistics and many high 
volume services closed for 
period of the year including 
bulky items and pest control.  
There was no formal/routine 
Council Tax recovery in place 
which is the most common 
reason for contacting the 
Council.  Like for like 
comparisons on a service level 
can be made but almost all 
include large changes to the 
service temporarily. 

Total email enquiries to 
the CCC 

39,805 43,643 
(8.8% 
increase) 

40,434 – 
a 7.3% 
reductio
n based 
on 
previous 
year 

66,861 – 
65% 
increase 

 5% 
reduction 

Telephony issues, home 
working, vacancies and 
absences have increased emails 
by 65%. 

E-service use as a 
percentage of overall 
contact with the CCC 
(bulky / waste / e-claims) 

CCC:E-
services 
93.3%:6.
7% 

6.3% e-
services 
interactio
ns 

CCC:E-
services 
90.7%:9.
3% 

Unable 
to 
calculate 

CCC:E-
services 
91.5%:8.
5% 

An accurate comparison is not 
available for 2020/21 due to 
telephone volume reporting not 
being fully available, however e-
service volumes for bulky items, 
e-billing and e-claims have all 
increased which is great. 

My.Hyndburn online use 
as a percentage of overall 
number of bulky item 
requests 

58% 60%  65.6% 72% 62% The take up of online services 
such as bulky items is a great 
measure of the importance of 
online services being available, 
72% is much higher than we 
ever thought we could achieve. 

Total number of E-billing 
registrations 

15,239 16,356  17,806 18,038 17,500 This represents 46% of the 
combined Ctax and NDR base. 
Target has been achieved via 
daily promotion rather than 
take-up campaigns 

 

 

  

Page 47



  

PERFORMANCE INDICATORS 2020/21 5 

 

Democratic Services 
Performance Indicators 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 Target Narrative 

Percentage of constituted 
meetings properly convened n/a 100% 100% 100% Figures supplied for 2020/21   

Percentage of meetings for 
which Supplemental 
Agendas were required n/a 25% 14% <20% 

Figures supplied for 2020/21.  
(4 of 28)   

Percentage of all items 
which were provided by 
way of a Supplemental 
Agenda n/a 12% 6% <10% 

Figures supplied for 2020/21 
(12 of 201)  

Percentage of Cabinet 
Meetings for which 
additional urgency or 
private decision public 
notices were required n/a 71% 67% 20% 

Figures supplied for 2020/21  
(4 of 6)  

Number of FOIs received 672 387 293 <500 

Figures supplied for 2020/21. (2019/20 
decrease follows change of inbox 
address) 

Percentage of FOI 
responded to within 
statutory time limits 65% 67% 59% >75% 

Figures supplied for 2020/21. 173 of 
293 were within the deadline. ICO 
relaxed deadlines in 2020/21 due to 
COVID  

Percentage of FOIs for 
which an Exemption Notice 
has been issued  n/a 3% 2% <5% 

Figures supplied for 2020/21. 5 of 293 
involved an exemption notice. 
Exemptions often require a complex 
response. 

 

  

Page 48



  

PERFORMANCE INDICATORS 2020/21 6 

 

Environmental Services 
Performanc
e Measure 

2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 Target or 
Actual  

Narrative 

Waste Services (MC) 
  

Household 
waste 
recycled  
(Dry -
tonnes)   
(Green - 
tonnes) 

6,065 
1,732 

Dry 
Recycling 
6,172 
tonnes 
(1.8% 
increase) 
Green 
Recycling 
1,147 
tonnes 

6,279 
tonnes 
 
1,345 
tonnes 

7,733 
tonnes 

 
 

1,499 
tonnes 

2 % 
increase 

 
Increase of 1454 tonnes a 23% 
increase compared to 2019/20 
 
Green recycling - (increase of 154 
tonnes from the same period 
2019/20) 

Total 
Household 
Waste 
Collected 
(kg, per 
household, 
per year) 
(Ex BVPI 
84a) 

302 
(2016/17) 

279kg 
Target 
achieved, 
(2017/18 
figures) show 
a reduction  

269kg 
(2017/18) 

281.2kg 
(2019/20) 

0% 
increase 
on 
previous 
year 

Increase in collected household waste 
per person of (12.2kg) above 18/19 
figures 269kg 

Total 
Income 
from green 
waste 
subscriptio
ns (£30 per 
bin) 

£150,000 Target 
achieved, 
total income 
£155,730 

£150,155 £169,289 150,000 Target achieved overall annual 
income achieved £169,289 
subscriptions up by (£19,289) 

Total 
income 
from 
Commercial 
Waste 
Collections  

£358,000 Target 
achieved, 
total income 
£367,432 

£380,343 
(Predicted 
yearly 
forecast) 

£396,289 £358,000 Target achieved £396.289 annually.   

Number of 
fly-tipped 
incidents 
reported 

2,028 Not 
achieved, 
2,410 
reported 
incidents 

2,848 3,153 5% 
decrease 

Increase of 305 more incidents 
reported compared with 19/20 full 
year. 

Percentage 
of incident 
removed 
with 10 
days 

No 
baseline 

Not 
achieved, 
71.5% 

No 
baseline 

57% 90% Not achieved, 57% covid and the IT 
systems have had an impact on this 
percentage 

Number of 
missed 
collections 
reported 

No 
Baseline 

755 
reported 
missed 
collections 
against 

 208 398 Actual 12 monthly figures show 398 
reported missed collections.  This is 
against approximately  
1.9 million Scheduled collections per 
annum. 

Page 49



  

PERFORMANCE INDICATORS 2020/21 7 

 

approx. 1.9 
million 
scheduled 
collections 
pa (0.04%). 

Enforcement (MC) 
  

Kingdom  
  

Littering No 
Baseline 

Issued 
(Litter) - 
1163 

No 
Baseline 

NA Actual LA Support (Kingdom)  
Please note due to Covid 19 LAS are 
no longer working for the Council 
since March 2020 

 
 
 
 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

Percentage 
Paid 

No 
Baseline 

Paid - 648 
(56%) 

No 
Baseline 

NA 75% 

Dog Fouling No 
Baseline 

Issued (Dog) 
- 1 

No 
Baseline 

NA Actual 

Percentage 
Paid 

No 
Baseline 

Within 
payment 
deadlines - 
373 
Referred for 
prosecution 
- 90 
Written off - 
53 

No 
Baseline 

NA Actual 

HBC 
  

Fly-tipping 
/ Littering 

  Issued (Fly-
tipping/Litte
r) - 518 

 7 0 Actual  
HBC 
No action was taken during covid 
lockdown as enfo officers were 
redeployed covering other functions. 
We have now switched to CPN’s 
Issued (Dog) FPN’s - 7 
  
  

Dog Issues   Issued (Dog) 
- 13 

 5 7 Actual Issued (Dog) - 5 
  
  

Capital Projects / Accidents (CH) 

Completion 
date 
against 
original 
timescale 

No 
baseline 

Target 
achieved, all 
projects 
finished 
within 
recognised 
timescales 

   Within 
timescal
e 

Due to Covid 19 capital programme 
schemes were delayed and slipped 
into this financial year for 
completion. So target not achieved. 

Page 50



  

PERFORMANCE INDICATORS 2020/21 8 

 

Percentage 
cost 
variation 
against 
original 
budget 

No 
baseline 

Most 
projects 
were 
completed 
within 
budget. A 
separate 
report will 
be 
completed 
relating to 
the 
Rhyddings 
Park project 
budget 
detailing the 
additional 
expenditure 
incurred. 

   Within 
Budget 

Target achieved as all projects 
completed were within budget. 
Rhyddings Park has a final claim due 
for submission and S106 money 
available to balance the budget. 

Number of 
staff 
accidents 
across 
Council 

18 Target 
achieved, 1 
accident and 
10 First Aid 
Cases across 
the Council 
during 
2018/19 
(39% 
reduction).  
A major 
reason for 
the 
reduction in 
accidents is 
the change 
to wheelie 
bins for 
recycling 

  7 No 
increase 

Target achieved - 7 total accidents 
across the Council made up of 6 First 
Aid cases and 1 lost time accident 
  
  

Number of 
reportable 
accidents 

4 Target 
achieved, 1 
RIDDOR 
reportable 
accident 
during 
2018/19 
(75% 
reduction). 

  1 No 
increase 

Target achieved, 1 RIDDOR 
reportable accident during 2020/21 
  
  

Number of 
threatening 
behaviour 
or incidents 
across 
Council 
 
 
 

13 Target 
achieved, 9 
incidents of 
threatening 
behaviour 
against staff 
during 
2018/19 

  11 No 
increase 

Target achieved, 11 incidents of 
threatening behaviour against staff 
during 2020/21 
  
  

Page 51



  

PERFORMANCE INDICATORS 2020/21 9 

 

(30% 
reduction). 

CVMU (JD)  
  

Percentage 
of Council 
vehicles 
checked 
within the 
legislative 
timescales. 

100% Target 
achieved, 
100% 
inspections 
completed 
within 
timescales. 

 100% 100% 100% Target achieved, 100% inspections 
completed within timescales. 
  

Percentage 
of driver 
licences 
checked 
within 
Council 
timescales. 

100% Target 
achieved, 
100% 
inspections 
completed 
within 
timescales 
(DVSA best 
practice 
recommend
s checks to 
be carried 
out every 3 
months). 

 100% 100% 100% Target achieved, 100% inspections 
completed within timescales (DVSA 
best practice recommends checks to 
be carried out every 3 months). 
  

The 
Council’s 
Operator 
Licence 
Score. 

Green Target 
achieved, 
Green as at 
31/1/19 - 
latest score.  

 Green Green Green Target achieved, Green - latest score.  
  

No of Taxi 
tests 
undertaken
. 

1,666 Total 
number of 
tests 
undertaken 
– 1,728  
Pass (1,293) 
– 74.8% 
Fail (435) – 
25.2% 

 Total 
Tests 
Undertak
en 1634  
Pass 
(1233 
)75.5 
Fail (401) 
24.5 

Total 
Tests  
undertak
en 1074 
Pass (811) 
– 75.5 
Fail (263) 
– 24.5 

Actual Total Tests  
undertaken 1074 
Pass (811) – 75.5 
Fail (263) – 24.5 
  

Percentage 
and 
number of 
Taxi’s 
passed (7 
years and 
under) 

83.90% 497 tests - 
Pass (397) – 
80.2 

 436 Tests 
Pass (358) 
82.1 

268 Tests 
Pass (218) 
81.3 

Actual 268 Tests 
Pass (218) 
81.3 
  

Percentage 
and 
number of 
Taxi’s 
passed (8 
years and 
over) 

73.60% 1,233 tests - 
Pass (896) – 
72.7%  

 1152 
Tests 
Pass (868) 
75.3 

787 Tests 
Pass (590) 
75.0 

Actual 787 Tests 
Pass (590) 
75.0 
  

Page 52



  

PERFORMANCE INDICATORS 2020/21 10 

 

Parks, Cemeteries and Crematorium (CH) 

Number of 
Green Flag 
parks held 
by the 
Council 

8 Target 
achieved, 8 
Green flags 
were 
secured for 
parks and 
cemeteries. 

  9 8 Target achieved, 9 Green flags were 
secured for parks and cemeteries. 
  
  

Percentage 
of 
playground 
inspections 
completed 
within 
Council 
timescales. 

100% Target 
achieved, 
100% of 
playground 
inspections 
were 
completed 
each week. 

  100% 100% Target achieved, 100% of playground 
inspections were completed each 
week. 
  
  

Percentage 
of statutory 
crematorium 
/ burial 
paperwork 
completed 
within 
legislative 
timescales. 

100% Target 
achieved, 
100% 
crematoriu
m and burial 
paperwork 
was 
completed 
on time 

  100% 100% Target achieved, 100% crematorium 
and burial paperwork was completed 
on time 
  
  

Percentage 
of 
memorial 
permits 
issued 
within 
timescales. 

100% Target 
achieved, all 
memorial 
permits 
were issued 
within 20 
days of a 
correctly 
submitted 
application 

  100% 100% Target achieved, all memorial 
permits were issued within 20 days of 
a correctly submitted application 
  
  

Total 
income 
generation 
from 
cemeteries 
and 
crematoriu
m. 

£825,345 Target 
achieved, 
total income 
£878,275 

  £1,102,611 £852,745 There has been a lot of extra 
cremations and burials this last 12 
months – so the cemetery service 
income is high and has exceeded the 
target 
  
  

Pest Control and Dog Warden (LT) 

Number of 
educational 
roadshows 
delivered. 

3 2 completed 
but 2 had to 
be 
cancelled. 
Undertaken 
in 
partnership 
with the 
Dogs Trust.  

   3 Target not met as none achieved due 
to Covid 

Page 53



  

PERFORMANCE INDICATORS 2020/21 11 

 

Number of 
pest control 
visits 
provided 
free of 
charge to 
residents. 

1,649 Officers 
provided 
1,455 FOC 
visits. 

  1,330 Actual Officers provided 1,330 FOC pest 
control visits. However due to Covid 
these were for outside work only 

Number of 
no access 
for FOC 
service 

696 Target 
achieved, 
456 no 
access (35% 
reduction). 
Implemente
d a charge 
for no 
access and 
other 
changes to 
reduce 
wasted / 
lost 
appointmen
ts. 

  108 5% 
reductio
n 

Target achieved, 108 on access job. 
This was less than usual due to Covid 
and more people being at home. 
Implemented a charge for no access 
and other changes to reduce wasted 
/ lost appointments. 

Percentage 
of 
scheduled 
inspection 
visits 
completed 
for Pest 
Control 
contracts. 

100% Target 
achieved, 
100% of 
visits 
completed 
as required 

  100% 100% Target achieved, 100% of visits 
completed as required 
  
  

Total 
income 
generation 
from non-
contractual 
per year. 

New 
Target 

Target 
achieved, 
£8,057 
additional 
income from 
3 officers 
(4th officer 
long period 
of 
unforeseen 
absence 
since 
starting in 
September 
18). 

  £4,077 £1,500 Target achieved, £4,077 additional 
income from 3 pest control officers. 
  
  

Food and Safety (HD) – due to the pandemic information not currently available 

Percentage 
of food 
hygiene 
inspection 
completed 
within 
timescales 

100% Target 
achieved, 
100% of 
inspections 
completed. 

   100%  

Page 54



  

PERFORMANCE INDICATORS 2020/21 12 

 

Percentage 
inspections 
for new 
businesses 
completed 
within 
timescales 

100% Target 
achieved, 
100% of 
inspection 
completed. 
(28 day 
timescale 
set by 
legislation 
and starts 
when 
Council 
becomes 
aware 
business is 
operating). 

   100%  

Percentage 
and 
number of 
compliant 
food 
businesses 
within 
Borough (3 
or above). 

92.5% 
(603) 

88.6% (592) 
(Food 
operators 
scoring 3 or 
more). 

   Actual  

Percentage 
and 
number of 
non-
compliant 
food 
businesses 
within 
Borough (0, 
1 or 2). 

7.5% (49) 11.4% (76) 
(Food 
operators 
scoring 0, 1 
or 2). 

   Actual  

Number of 
food 
business 
still not 
compliant 6 
months 

7 13 
businesses 
still not 
compliant 
after 6 
months. 

   Actual  

Number of 
food 
business 
closures, 
(voluntary 
or non-
voluntary). 

5 8 businesses 
closed. 

   Actual  

Number of 
food 
businesses 
issued with 
Improveme
nt Notices. 
 

58 31 
businesses 
issued with 
improvemen
t notices. 

   Actual  

Page 55



  

PERFORMANCE INDICATORS 2020/21 13 

 

Markets (CS)  

Percentage 
of Stalls 
Occupied 

           

Balcony   66.70%       

Ground 
Floor 

  62.20%       

Pavilion 
Kiosks  

  77.80%       

Peel Street 
Kiosks 

  85.70%       

Outdoor 
Market 
Stalls 

  45.5% 
(across all 
days and 
including GT 
Harwood) 

      

Level of Debt (£) 
  

Current 
Traders 

£59,766 £26,704 
(55% 
reduction) 

   Actual  

Ex Traders £35,039 £20,153 
(42% 
reduction) 

   Actual  

Percentage 
of current 
stallholders 
NOT in 
arrears 

  71% of 
traders up 
to date with 
rents 

   Actual  

Total 
Income 
Received 

£374,843 £362,683    Actual  

Town Centre & Events (VI)  

Hold events 
in town 
centre 

  To hold 
minimum of 
4 events per 
month 

   Will use 
18/19 as 
baseline 

 

Increase 
visitors 
from within 
and outside 
Hyndburn 

  5% increase 
target for 
19/20 

   Will use 
18/19 as 
baseline 

 

Engage 
with town 
centre 
businesses 
and assess 
marketing 
requiremen
ts 

  Set target of 
4 businesses 
per month 
for 19/20 

   Will use 
18/19 as 
baseline 

 

Page 56



  

PERFORMANCE INDICATORS 2020/21 14 

 

Visit / 
Discover 
Accrington 
website 

  Set target of 
2 pages 
viewed by 
visitors, 1 
level of 
interaction 
by 10% of 
visitors and 
increase 
number of 
visitors by 
10% for 
19/20 

   Will use 
18/19 as 
baseline 

 

 

  

Page 57



  

PERFORMANCE INDICATORS 2020/21 15 

 

Finance 
Performance 
Measure 

2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 Target Narrative 

Absolute Value 
and Percentage 
of Unidentified 
Savings in any 
Budget against 
a target of 1.5% 
of net revenue 
budget set (e.g. 
18/19 
£11.174m * 
1.5% = 
£167,610, 
actual = 
£107,377 = 1%) 

18/19 
£11.175m*1.5%= 
£167,625, actual 
= £107,377 =1% 
 

2019/20 
£10.994m 
budget set 
with 1.5% 
unidentified 
savings of 
£165,184 

2020/21 
£11.227m 
budget set 
with 
unidentified 
savings of 
£116,000 = 
1% 

2021/22 
£11.227m 
budget set 
with 
unidentified 
savings of 
£116,000 = 1% 

Maximum 
1.5% of Net 
Revenue 
Budget set 
for 2022/23 

Achieved 

Absolute Value 
Level of 
Reserves at 
year-end 
expressed as a 
percentage 
compared to 
Annual Budget 

31/3/18 = 
£19,743,588 to 
2018/19 budget 
£11,175,000 = 
coverage of 1.77 
 

31/3/19 = 
£17.967M = 
1.63 
coverage of 
19/20 
budget of 
£10.994M 

31/3/20 
£18.007m = 
1.60 
coverage of 
20/21 
budget of 
£11.227m 

31/3/21 
£22.538m = 
2.01 coverage 
of 21/22 
budget of 
£11.227m 

Minimum 
1.5 
coverage 

 Achieved 

General reserve £2,558,173  £2,120,527 £2,312,703 £2,351,456 Minimum of 
£2m 

Achieved 

Earmarked 
reserve 

£11,377,958 
 

£11,542,803 
None 
foreseen 
 

£10,416,270 
None 
foreseen  

£10,432,007 
None foreseen 

No foreseen 
unfunded 
liabilities as 
per the 
S151 officer 

Achieved 

Capital receipts £5,807,457 
 

£4,302,648 
 

£5,278,143 £5,754,680 Minimum of 
£3m 

Achieved 

Budget Surplus 
at the end of 
the year—again 
in monetary 
and percentage 
terms against a 
minimum 
target of say 
1% (e.g 17/18 = 
£11.197m = 
£111,970, 
actual = £438k) 

17/18 £11.197m 
= £112k, actual = 
£438K (4%) 
 

£481k (4%) 
 

£192k 
(1.7%) 

£231k (2%) 21/22 
£11.227m * 
1% = 
£112,270 
underspend. 

Achieved 

The Council’s 
Net Worth 
excluding 
Pension 
Liability (e.g. 
17/18 = 
£48.947m) 

17/18 £48.947m 
 

Actual 
£48.147m 
 

£47.755m. £51.969m Improving 
position 
 

Achieved 

Page 58



  

PERFORMANCE INDICATORS 2020/21 16 

 

Value and 
Percentage of 
Government 
Grant 
compared to 
Budget 

18/19 = £1.999m 
(18%)  
 

19/20 = 
£1.535m 
(14%) 
 

20/21 = 
£1.560m 
(14%) 
 

21/22 = 
£1.568m 
(14%) 

No target - 
measure 
only. 
2022/23 
Funding 
Statement 
expected 
December 
2021. 

It is believed 
that Revenue 
Support Grant 
will be ended 
(or 
incorporated 
in Business 
Rates 
Funding) once 
the delayed 
Fair Funding 
Review has 
concluded. 

Fees & Charges 
Income –again 
value and 
percentage of 
budget 

17/18 £5.418m = 
48.4% of 17/18 
revenue budget 
 

18/19 
£4.491m = 
40.2% of 
18/19 
budget. 
Reduction of 
£927k 
including 
£821k LCC 
waste cost 
sharing 
income. 
 

19/20 
£4.750m = 
43.2% of 
19/20 
budget. 

20/21 
£4.140m = 
36.9% of 
20/21 budget 

Minimum 
40% for 
21/22 = 
£4.491m 
 

 Not achieved 
in 2020/21 
due to Covid-
19 impacting 
on most 
sources of 
income 
including 
weddings, 
markets, 
estates and 
court fees. 
This was 
mitigated by 
the 
Government 
awarding 
£700k of 
Safes, Fees & 
Charges 
compensation 
which if 
included 
would have 
surpassed the 
target. 

Sundry Debtors 
overdue (over 
30 days)  

17/18 £0.788m 18/19 = 
£0.646m  
 

£1.011m. 
Leisure in 
Hyndburn = 
£0.382m, 
Others = 
£0.629m  

£2.606m. 
Leisure in 
Hyndburn = 
£1.869m, 
Others = 
£0.737m 

Reduce over 
30 days  
 

 Nearly all of 
this increased 
debt is 
monies owed 
by the Leisure 
Trust 
resulting from 
closure of 
facilities due 
to Covid-19. 
The board 
and Council 
have agreed 
steps to 
reduce this by 
a grant and a 
long-term 
loan, and the 
Trust is now 
paying any 
new debt on a 
monthly basis 

Page 59



  

PERFORMANCE INDICATORS 2020/21 17 

 

Borrowing 
Levels and Cost 
of financing 
(Currently 
using measure 
per capital 
budget ie < 5% 
(actual 4%) 

17/18 = 4% 
 

18/19 = 4% 
 

19/20 = 4% 20/21 = 4%  < 5%  
 

  

Working 
Capital – 
Current assets 
less current 
liabilities 
(31/3/18 was 
£30.363m less 
£6.017m = 
£24.346m or 
coverage of  5.05 
times) 

31/3/18 was 
£30.363m less 
£6.017m = 
£24.346m or 
coverage of 5.05 
times. 
 

31/3/19 is 
£30.068m 
less 
£7.285m = 
£22.783m or 
coverage of 
4.12 times. 
 

31/3/20 is 
£46.689m 
less 
£21.300m = 
£25.389m or 
coverage of 
2.19 

31/3/21 is 
£49.960m less 
£20.392m = 
£29.568m or 
coverage of 
2.45 times 

> 2 times 
 

  

Salary costs as 
a value and 
percentage of 
overall spend 
(excl benefits 
and capital costs) 

17/18 = 
£10.337m = 
46.7% 
 

18/19 = 
£10.243m = 
47.6%  
 

19/20 = 
£10.393m = 
40% 
 

20/21 = 
£11.224m. 
% to follow 

No target - 
measure 
only 
 

 Value 
Expected to 
increase each 
year. Large 
increase in 
20/21 due to 
employees 
undertaking 
covid-19/new 
burdens grant 
funded work 

Salary savings 
as a percentage 
of budget (say 

1% to 2% due to 
turnover / 
vacancies) 

1.78% 
 

£234k = 
2.1% 
 

 
 

£162k = 1.5% Between 1% 
and 2% due 
to turnover 
/ vacancies.  
 

Saving 
achieved 

Pension costs 
as value and 
percentage of 
overall net 
revenue spend 

17/18 = £2.430m 
or 22.6% of net 
spend 
 

18/19 = 
£2.433m - 
net spend 
£10.693m 
representing 
22.7% 
 

19/20 = 
£2.375m 
spend 
£10.802m 
representing 
22% 
 

20/21 = 
£1.925m – net 
spend = 
£10.996m = 
17.50% 

Maintain or 
reduce 
value and % 
at next 
triennial 
review (for 
22/23) 

  
Reduction 
achieved 

External 
Audit—
completion of 
the Annual 
Accounts on 
time,  

17/18  
31/5/18 
 

31/05/2019 
 

 Not yet 
finalised 

Not yet 
finalised 

31/07/21 
 

  

Audit Opinion 
on Time,  

17/18  
30/7/18 
 

29/7/19 
Audit 
Committee 

 Not yet 
given 

 30 
November 
 

  

External Audit 
points raised 
and un-
qualified 
opinion 
received. 

17/18 achieved 
 

29/7/19 
Audit 
Committee 
 

 July 2021 
Audit 
Committee 

 November 
2021 Audit 
Committee  

  

Page 60



  

PERFORMANCE INDICATORS 2020/21 18 

 

Governance 
Performance 
Measures 

2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 Target Narrative 

Number of data 
protection breaches 
reported to the ICO 

  2   0 Actual 
numbers 
to be 
recorded 

No action taken by the ICO 

Number of data 
protection breaches 
reported to the ICO 
which result in action 
against the Council 

 
0 

 
0 Actual 

numbers 
to be 
recorded 

Action could include a fine, 
prosecution or a direction to 
improve policy and 
procedures 

Number of 
complaints against 
the Council 
determined by the 
LGO 

  8   1 Actual 
numbers 
to be 
recorded 

Determinations can include 
“no breach” and “premature 
complaint” i.e determinations 
do not have to find fault by 
the Council and just record 
the number of complaints 
investigated by the LGO 

Number of 
complaints against 
the Council upheld by 
the LGO 

 
0 

 
0 Actual 

numbers 
to be 
recorded 

Info only available from the 
ICO up to July 2020 

Number of 
complaints of breach 
of the member code 
of conduct upheld by 
the Monitoring 
Officer 

  0   0 Actual 
numbers 
to be 
recorded 

The MO is able to determine 
the more minor complaints 

Number of 
complaints of breach 
of the member code 
of conduct referred 
to Standards 
Committee 

 
0 

 
0 Actual 

number 
to be 
recorded 

Standards Committee deals 
with more serious complaints 
or complaints relating to 
group leaders  /  cabinet 
members 

Number of 
complaints of breach 
of the member code 
of conduct upheld by 
Standards Committee 

  0   0 Actual 
number 
to be 
recorded 

  

Compliance with the 
Electoral 
Commissions 
performance 
standards for 
returning officers 

 
Yes 

 
0 Yes  No election in 2020 

Page 61



  

PERFORMANCE INDICATORS 2020/21 19 

 

Compliance with the 
Electoral 
Commissions 
performance 
standards for 
electoral registration 
officers 

  Yes   Yes YES    

 

 

 

  

Page 62



  

PERFORMANCE INDICATORS 2020/21 20 

 

Policy & OD 
Performance Measure 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20  2020/21 Target Narrative 

Top 5% of Earners: 
Women  

35.70% 38.46%  42.87% 
 

42.86%   
 

Top 5% of Earners: 
Ethnic Minorities 

0% 0% 0% 0% 
  

Top 5% of Earners: with 
a Disability 

0% 0% 0% 0%   

Working Days Lost Due 
to Sickness Absence 
(per FTE) 

8.77 7.36  8.53 3.97 8 
 

% of Early Retirements 0.36% 0.79%  0.00% 1%   3 people, not ER/VR 

% of Ill Health 
Retirements 

0% 0%  0% 0.3%    1 person 

% of Employees with a 
Disability 

9.56% 8.00%  7.00% 5.4%     

Ethnic Minority 
Employees 

4.04% 5.19%  4.80% 5.8%     

Median gender pay gap 0.40% -1.30%   0%   
 

Mean gender pay gap 7.00% 6.00%   3.6%   

Apprenticeship target 0.71% 2.21%   3.31% 2.30% Government target 

Employee satisfaction 
in last survey 

84% 84%  87% 87% 80% 2 yearly survey 

% of staff receiving 
PDRs 

94% 96%  92% 80% 95%   

Increase / decrease on 
FTE from previous year 

-4.30% -1.20%  0.00% +3%   Increase of 4 people 

Increase / decrease on 
headcount from 
previous year 

-5.50% 1.10%  -0.47% + 1.5%   

Number of vacancies 
advertised 

24 29  27 45     

% Vacancies filled on 
first internal advert 

new 34.48%  29.60% 44.44%    

% Vacancies filled on 
first external advert 

new 41.37%  44.40% 53.33%    

Number of 
redundancies in year 

6 2  0 2   Voluntary redundancies 

Percentage of training 
budget spent 

103% 114%  100% 74.36% 100% Affected by pandemic 

Turnover 12.08 11.43%  5.20% 9%     

 

Page 63



  

PERFORMANCE INDICATORS 2020/21 21 

 

ICT 
Performance 
Measure 

2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 Target Narrative 

Enable efficiencies 
  

Increase project 
work with all 
service areas to 
streamline 
processes and 
reduce traditional 
paper-based 
approach 

2 6 4 part-way. 
5 in 
planning 
stage 
 

7 
completed 

6 A greater utilisation of team’s 
skills and knowledge to 
implement efficiencies 
through project work with 
other service areas. Improved 
communications and unity 
between teams will allow for 
collaboration. 

Expand use of 
mobile technology 
to improve 
efficiency of all staff 

  24 laptops 
 
93 mobile 
phones 

185 
laptops 
 
151 
mobile 
phones 

  Environmental 
enforcement in place 

 Food safety in final test 
stages 

 CAFMS software 
evaluation started 

Replacement of current CRM 
and in-cab technology due 
2021/22 

Printer 
rationalisation to 
reduce running and 
toner costs 
throughout the 
council, carbon 
footprint and paper 
use 

Budget – 
£1,500.00 

£4,495.66 £2,572.06 
(not 
specified 
spent or 
budget)  as 
of 28 
October 
2019 

£3,552.56 Budget – 
£1,561.00 

Why are we still printing? 
Purchase compatibles where 
possible. Any printer in 
warranty uses original toner. 
ICT does not control all 
printing as devices bought by 
service areas outside of ICT 
remit. 
Noted that individual service 
areas have purchased toner 
for home printers and 
recharged this to Covid 
budget or individual service 
area’s budgets therefore not a 
reflection of true spend. 

Spend – 
£6610.77 

An overall 
decrease 
on last 
year's 
spend of 
33% 

   
 

Flexible/agile response to customer needs  

Increase in online 
application forms to 
reduce paper-
copies, increase 
efficiencies, and 
create a more 
useable internal and 
external customer 
interface. 

Website – 
20 

Website – 
25 

Website – 
26 
 

44 Website – 
30 

All government grant 
forms published on the 
website when required. 
2021/2022 exercise to 
update/amend all existing 
web-based forms. 
 
 

Hyntranet 
– 1 

Hyntranet 
– 1 

 Hyntranet 
– 9 

12 Hyntranet 
– 10 

HR21 – 0 HR21 – 0 HR21 – 0 0 HR21 – 0 

Bodet - 0 Bodet - 0 Bodet - 0 0 Bodet - 0 

Page 64



  

PERFORMANCE INDICATORS 2020/21 22 

 

Review and upgrade 
current CRM 
platform and 
consider expansion 
to include more 
payments online 
where feasible. 

    April 2022 2021/2022 Capital 
programme project to review 
and upgrade the current in-
house provision. Ongoing 
consultation with potential 
service areas regarding 
viability of online payments. 

Achieve 
recommended 
website accessibility 
by  September 2019 

WCAG 2 WCAG 2 Outstanding 
though 
project plan 
in place. 
Work is 
being 
carried out 
on this by 
current 
staff though 
the 
Application 
Developer 
will take 
this 
forward. 
 

Not 
achieved 
 

WCAG 2.1 
by 
September 
2020 

Initial deadline extended to 
September 2020. 
 
Lack of dedicated web 
developer role within ICT has 
meant testing has not taken 
place in last 12 months 
however, this will be 
reinstated. 

Reduce Service Desk 
tickets to allow for 
increase in project 
work 

Qtr 1 – 
1316 

Qtr 1 – 
1586 

Qtr 1 – 
1340 
 

Qtr 1 – 
1486 
 

5000 
annually 

A reduction of tickets to be 
achieved through user 
education, more detailed 
explanations of solutions to 
issues by the ICT team, 
availability of self-help guides, 
the addressing of recurring 
software/hardware issues by 
ICT team as opposed to quick 
fixes. 

Qtr 2 – 
1401 

Qtr 2 – 
1400 

Qtr 2 – 
1453 
 

Qtr 2 – 
1796 
 

Qtr 3 – 
1162 

Qtr 3 – 
1414 

Qtr 3 – 
1318 
 

Qtr 3 – 
1334 
 

Qtr 4 – 
1594 

Qtr 4 - 
1624 

Qtr 4– 1662 
 

Qtr 4– 
1442 
 

Total - 
5473 

Total – 
6024  

Total – 
5773 
 

Total – 
6058 
 

Provide modern architecture to support an efficient and agile working culture  

Increase in 
transference of 
services to Cloud 
where viable.  

0 2 0 5 3 Results of the Software 
Inventory will identify 
where existing software 
can be transferred to a 
cloud-based solution. 
 
Aim to reduce servers in 
server room, running costs 
and need to replace every 
3 years. This also frees up 
skilled officer time for 

Page 65



  

PERFORMANCE INDICATORS 2020/21 23 

 

project work as opposed to 
out of hours software 
updates. 
 
A full analysis is made of 
all proposals for new 
software that have a 
cloud-based option and 
where viable services will 
be transferred from on-site 
hosting. Success is 
dependent on ICT 
involvement at the start of 
all projects. 
  

Increase level of 
virtualisation of ICT 
servers to 90% by 
March 2022 

  75% 85% 90% by 
April 2022 

2021/2022 Capital 
programme project to 
further reduce the physical 
servers on HBC network 
where possible and 
practicable and secure to 
do so. 

Continue to reduce 
and rationalise ICT 
hardware, replacing 
with more energy 
efficient options. 

  30 20 20 physical 
servers 

Reduction in physical 
servers in server room will 
lead to lower energy bills in 
terms of running costs. 
Replacement historic 
equipment on a rolling 3-
year replacement 
programme also ensures 
the most efficient and 
effective ICT hardware is in 
production. To note, at 
least 95% of packaging is 
now recyclable with 
suppliers making a noted 
move towards becoming 
carbon neutral. 

Migration to SIP 
trunking by April 
2022 to replace 
copper ISDN lines 
(to be phased out 
2025) 

    April 2022 Move to SIP trunking for 
land lines by April 2022 will 
reduce landline bills by an 
estimated 33% and create 
greater flexibility and 
resilience within the 
telephony system. 

Complete Windows 
10 rollout 
 
PI can now be 
removed from list 
as task complete. 

5% March 
2019 - 
30% 

Nov 2019 - 
50% 
 

Mar 2021 
– 100% 

April 2020 
– 95% 
May 2020 
- 100% 

Delay in final punch on 
upgrade due to resources 
(staff and base units) being 
reallocated due to Covid 
response. 
  
  

Facilitate business continuity, sound information management and governance, and security 

Page 66



  

PERFORMANCE INDICATORS 2020/21 24 

 

System uptime - 
based on average of 
730 hours per 
month. A maximum 
of 1% to allow for 
essential 
maintenance. 

99.70% 99.00%  99% 99.7% 99% Loss of network access due 
to upgrade requirement of 
virtual environment. 
Upgrade now underway as 
part of Capital Programme 
2021/2022 and virtual 
network now stabilizing. 
  
  

Reduce number of 
Cyber Security 
incidents 

2 2  0 0 0 LGA grant has been used 
to purchase online Cyber 
Security Awareness 
module. Please encourage 
all your staff to complete 
the training. 
 
We have received spoof 
emails from other 
companies that have been 
targeted however, users 
have reported these e-
mails if they have made it 
through our security 
software. 
 
An upgrade of the security 
software solution has 
introduced tighter controls 
for the network and 24 
hour monitoring and 
threat detection. 
 
In context, we still receive 
approx. 5000 emails per 
day and on average 1000 
of these are quarantined 
as spam/viruses/direct 
threats. 
  

Maintain annual 
PSN connectivity 

Yes Yes  Yes Yes Yes PSN connectivity 
maintained however 
uncertainty still remains in 
regards to the 
accreditation process. Still 
awaiting latest updates 
from Cabinet Office/Crown 
Commercial Services. 
  
  

 

 

  

Page 67



  

PERFORMANCE INDICATORS 2020/21 25 

 

Legal 
Performance 
Measure 

2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 Target Narrative 

Number of summonses issued for waste enforcement prosecutions 
  
  
  

Actual 
numbers 
to be 
recorded 

L A Support Ltd 
have not been 
working during 
the pandemic 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

a)      Hyndburn 
Borough Council; 
and 

 
157 2 

 
0 

b)      Kingdom b) 
Kingdom 
only 
starting 
working 
with the 
Council on 
1 October 
2018 

27 (Feb and 
March only 
– a further 
40 were 
sent to 
Court in and 
April 2019) 

208 
(these still tend 
to be sent over in 
large batches) 

0 

Number of 
successful waste 
enforcement 
prosecutions –  

   
 Actual 

numbers 
to be 
recorded 

L A Support Ltd 
have not been 
working during 
the pandemic   
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

a)       Hyndburn 
Borough Council; 
and 

 
111 0 0 

b)      Kingdom b) 
Kingdom 
only 
starting 
working 
with the 
Council on 
1 October 
2018 

25 to end of 
March (still 
awaiting 
results from 
Court for 
the 40 cases 
sent in 
April) 

b) 103, but 
awaiting results 
from December 
2019 onwards) 

0 

Number of pre-
action protocol 
letters received 
for potential 
Judicial Review 
action 

  1 – dealt 
with by JAE 
in 
December 
(Licensing) 

 0 Nil Actual 
numbers 
to be 
recorded 

If any pre-action 
protocol letters 
are received the 
Council does 
usually manage 
to respond to the 
issues raised and 
avoid judicial 
review action 
  
  

Number of 
successful Judicial 
Review 
applications 

 
0 0 nil Actual 

numbers 
to be 
recorded 

  
  
  

Percentage of 
instructions for 
Land and Property 
matters actioned 

  100%  100% 100% 100% This is linked to 
one of the Legal 
Section’s ongoing 
priorities for to 
support land 

Page 68



  

PERFORMANCE INDICATORS 2020/21 26 

 

within 2 weeks of 
receipt 

sales.  There is 
often a lot of 
“unseen” work 
carried out by the 
Legal Section on 
transactions 
which do not 
proceed 
  
  

Number of letters 
before action sent 
out in respect of 
outstanding 
Council Tax/NDR 
matters 

 
Instructions 
received on 
4, 2 letters 
drafted and 
information 
requested/ 
needs 
clarifying – 
to Revs and 
Bens 
13.3.19 

19 (including 5 
couples who will 
receive separate 
letters) 

0 Actual 
number 
to be 
recorded 

A letter before 
action is sent out 
to the tax payer 
before serving a 
statutory demand 
to encourage 
contact and to 
make an 
arrangement to 
pay the tax 
outstanding 
  
  

Number of 
Statutory 
Demands 
prepared  

  2 16 (including 5 
couples who will 
have received 
separate 
Demands) 

0 Actual 
number 
to be 
recorded 

The Council 
serves a statutory 
demand before 
issuing a 
bankruptcy 
petition or 
winding up 
petition in respect 
of outstanding 
council tax or 
non-domestic 
rates.  There has 
been no recovery 
action of this sort 
during the 
pandemic 
  
  

Number of 
Bankruptcy Orders 
made 

  Nil – but 2 
Winding Up 
Petitions 
with Court  

2  
Winding Up 
Orders made in 
respect of 
outstanding 
NNDR at the 
Arndale Centre – 
subsequently 
rescinded 
(21.8.19) as paid 
the balance due. 
9 Bankruptcy 
Petitions issued 
and served (3 
couples and 3 
individuals).  
There have been 
a number of 
hearings 

1 
(The 
proceedings 
were 
started 
before the 
pandemic 
and the 
Order was 
made on 4 
June 2020) 

Actual 
number 
to be 
recorded 

The number of 
bankruptcy orders 
made will show 
that element of 
tax payers that 
don’t work with 
the Council but 
remain a 
persistent “won’t 
payer” 
  
  

Page 69



  

PERFORMANCE INDICATORS 2020/21 27 

 

including 
telephone 
hearings during 
lockdown.  Most 
have made 
arrangements 
but one 
individual went 
forward to the 
next financial 
year for a 
telephone 
hearing in June 
2020) 

 

  

Page 70



  

PERFORMANCE INDICATORS 2020/21 28 

 

Licensing 
Performance Measure 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 Target Narrative 

Number of vehicle spot 
checked per month 

     70 0   Multi Agency Safety 
Operations 

Number of 
Improvement Notices 
issued 

     10 0   Vehicles fall short of 
required standard and 
are given a specified 
period to improve 

Number of S68 
suspensions issued 

     9 0   Vehicles that fall short of 
required standard and 
are suspended with 
immediate effect 

Percentage of licensing 
complaints responded 
to within 5 working 
days 

       100% Initial response to be 
sent as soon as an officer 
received the complaint. 

Percentage of licensing 
complaints resolved 
within 2 months. 

         Some more complex 
complaints may take 
longer and when this 
occurs reasons will be 
given e.g. complaint 
subject to police 
investigation etc. 

The number of licence applications received and percentage processed by categories: 

Licensing Act     349 (100% 
processed) 

 100% Statutory timeframe 

Taxis      2700 
(100% 
processed) 

1838 
(100% 
processed) 

100%   

Gambling Act      50 (100%) 181 (100% 
processed) 

100% Statutory timeframe 

Miscellaneous      66 (100%) 16 (100%) 100%   

The number of appeals 
received  

    5 31 (100%)   2 still outstanding 

The percentage of 
appeals that are upheld  

     80% 3   3 have been heard and 
the Council were 
successful in 2 of them.  
Two appeals are still to 
be heard 

Page 71



  

PERFORMANCE INDICATORS 2020/21 29 

 

Planning 
 

Performance Measure 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 
(Qtr1-2) 

2020/21 Target Narrative 

Major Planning 
Applications determined 
within 13 weeks or within 
agreed time extension.   

 100%  100%  93.3% 92.9%   The need to sign s.106 
agreements is often a 
reason for delay.  There 
has been an increase in 
the %age of applications 
where an extension of 
time agreement has been 
sought.   

Major Planning 
Applications – extensions 
of time 

 34.6% 100% 60% 86%   The reason for the high 
number of time extensions 
relates largely to changes 
in the team.  This needs to 
be positively managed so 
that the number of time 
extensions are reduced 
because it hinders the 
delivery of an effective 
service.  Although the 
headline performance 
figures remain good, this 
indicator highlights a 
concern that could cause 
problems in the future if it 
is not addressed.   

Minor Planning 
Applications determined 
within 8 weeks or within 
agreed time extension 

 98% 95.5%  96.6% 88.1%   The reason for the high 
number of time extensions 
relates largely to changes 
in the team.  This needs to 
be positively managed so 
that the number of time 
extensions are reduced 
because it hinders the 
delivery of an effective 
service.  Although the 
headline performance 
figures remain good, this 
indicator highlights a 
concern that could cause 
problems in the future if it 
is not addressed.   

Minor Planning 
Applications – extensions 
of time 

 18% 24.7%   37.5% 64.8% 
  

Other Planning 
Applications determined 
within 8 weeks or within 
agreed time extension 

 97.4% 100%   97.2% 94.7%   
 

Other Planning 
Applications – extensions 
of time 

 9.7% 14.1%  25% 25.8% 
 

 

Planning Fees Refunded    £200  £1938 £1066 
  

Page 72



  

PERFORMANCE INDICATORS 2020/21 30 

 

To complete the initial 
investigation of 
enforcement complaints 
within 56 days of receipt 
of complaint 

  66%   73.6 82 
 

   

%age of appeals allowed  15.4% 50%   12.5% 60% 
 

The number of appeals 
remains quite low, 
however the number of 
appeals allowed is higher 
than the government 
performance framework 
supports.   

Develop planning policy in 
line with the adopted 
Local Development 
Scheme (LDS).   

   Yes      There is currently some 
slippage against the Local 
Development Scheme 
(LDS) and it is intended 
that the LDS will be 
reviewed next year.   

To meet the requirements 
of the Housing Delivery 
Test – As measured by 
MHLG annually 

   138%      The performance is 
established by MHLG and 
published on-line.  There 
are no performance issues 
at the present time in 
respect of this.   

To maintain a five year 
supply of housing in line 
with requirements of 
NPPG / NPPF 

 >5yrs    No issues at present time 

Local Land and Property 
Gazetteer – To achieve at 
least overall silver rating 
for as measured by 
Geoplace Agreement 

Gold  Bronze BNS   

To determine all 
applications submitted 
under the Building 
Regulations within 8 
weeks 

     This figure needs to be 
collected.    

To ensure that at least 
95% of allotment plots are 
leased at any one time 

 >99%    This figure needs to be 
collected.   

Planning Income received 
as %age of planned 
income 

 113.1% 147% 115%  The overall figure is 
satisfactory.   

Building Control Income 
received as %age of 
planned income 

 59.5% 74.7% 106.1%   

Page 73



  

PERFORMANCE INDICATORS 2020/21 31 

 

Planning and Building 
Control Income received 
as %age of planned 
income 

 91.9% 118.5% 107.9%  

Planning applications over 
5 months (fee value) 

 22,292    

 

  

Page 74



  

PERFORMANCE INDICATORS 2020/21 32 

 

Regen and Housing 
Performance 
Measures 

2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 Target Narrative 

Employment Growth including Business Support 

Economically 
Active 

37,200 
(72.3%) 

 39,600 
(84.2%) 

40,500 
(82.5%) 

 38,600 
(74.2%) 

N/A  For information 

Unemployed 2,000 
(5.3%) 

 1,800 
(4.7%) 

 1,800 
(4.3%) 

2,000 
(5.0%) 

N/A  For information 

Annual Earnings 
- Residents 

£24,892  £23,795  £25,162 £24,518    For information 

Annual Earnings 
- Employees 

£22,999  £24,414  £26,728 £27,788 N/A  For information 

Service Enquiries 
(Number / % of 
Lancashire) 

142 (5%)      N/A   

Business 
Support 
Referrals 

140          

Business Rates 
and Council Tax 
Growth 

       N/A   

Housing Market 

Number of 
Empty Homes 

1286  1299  1273 1088  1,700 Significant progress has been made in 
reducing the number of empty homes 
in the Borough.  This is an 
encouraging sign for Hyndburn’s 
housing market and reflect a number 
of policy initiatives including empty 
dwelling council tax premium, 
enforcement, and selective landlord 
licensing 

Proportion of 
Empty Homes 

3.5%  3.5%  3.4% 2.9% 4.50%   

Over 6 Months 
Empty 

675  674  634 656  550 We have stabilised the number of long 
term empty dwellings, but we are not 
making significant inroads into 
making a significant reduction.  This 
will require a refocus and 
prioritisation of tools that are likely 
lead to success such as enforced sale. 

Over 6 Months 
Empty (%) 

1.83%  1.83%  1.71% 1.76% 1.50%   

Page 75



  

PERFORMANCE INDICATORS 2020/21 33 

 

Number of new 
housing 
completions 

97  174  167 182 109 The number of new house completions 
has increased significantly in recent 
years, which indicates that Hyndburn’s 
housing market is showing signs of 
growth.  Pipeline of new house 
building suggests the growth will 
continue for the next 2 years. 

Average house 
prices 

£92.223  £91,647  £100,557 £107,227  N/A   

Housing Advice and Homelessness 

No. of 
households on 
housing register 

1440    1731 1865 N/A Rising increase in demand for social / 
affordable housing, mainly from single 
person households a good number of 
which are “revolving door cases” – 
vulnerable households struggling to 
maintain a tenancy.  Also reflects a 
slowdown in supply for affordable 
housing and the private rented sector 
prepared to assist those in housing 
need. 
NB a new build programme of 100+ 
new affordable homes should assist. 

Band 1 and 2 
(high priority for 
rehousing) 

229   369  438 
Band 1: 44 
Band 2: 394 

N/A As above, but reflecting increasing 
demand from more vulnerable 
households. 
Significant increase in ex-offenders. 

Number of 
service requests 
(housing advice) 
New PI for 20/21 

   743 N/A New for 2020/21:  Introduced to 
monitor demand for service i.e. service 
requests 

Case load – 
housing advice 
cases opened  
New PI for 20/21 

   553 N/A New for 2020/21:  As above – this 
reflects the actual caseload for the 
housing advice service. 

No. placed in 
temporary 
accommodation 

30    40 58   Increase in use of TA due to decrease 
in availability of affordable housing, 
albeit the numbers remain 
manageable.  This has resulted in 
rising temporary housing costs. 

Average length 
of stay (nights) 

19.8    13.25 22 25 See above – increase length in stay in 
temporary accommodation linked to 
availability of social / affordable 
housing relets, although some 
homeless households are rehoused in 
the private rented sector. 

No. of 
prevention cases 
(before 
homelessness 
occurs i.e. 
threatened with 
homelessness) 

133    114 57 15 The reduction in 20/21 is linked 
directly with the Covid legal ban on 
evictions. 

No. owed full 
statutory duty 

New    3 0 N/A The very low number indicates that 
there isn’t a significant homelessness 
issue in Hyndburn with most homeless 
cases either prevented from becoming 

Page 76



  

PERFORMANCE INDICATORS 2020/21 34 

 

homeless or rehousing is secured 
within the early days of homelessness. 

No. of relief 
cases (actual 
homelessness 
for 0 – 56 days) 

     132 112 N/A   

Environmental Protection including Private Rented Sector 

No. of blighted 
sites / property 
improved 
(within 3 
months) 

 193 of 
262 
(74%) 

 204 of 
269 
(75%) 

 421 of 
557 
(76%) 

331 of 368 
(90%) 

90% Higher numbers due to improvements 
in monitoring.  Improved response 
time and resolutions for a very 
challenging target is very good 
performance. 

No. of Category 
1&2 Hazards 
removed from a 
dwelling within 
3 months 

 21 of 53 
(40%) 

 15 of 
37 
(41%) 

 No data 71 of 97 
(73.2%) 

90% Behind target, but very good 
performance when taking into 
account x1 permanent vacancy in the 
team for over 2 years, with 
intermittent cover from agency 
workers. However, performance has 
improved. 

HMO's inspected 
- Very high risk – 
6 monthly 

     0 0 0    

HMO's inspected 
- High risk – 12 
months 

     2 of 2 2 of 2  100%   

HMO's inspected 
- Medium risk – 
18 months 

     17 of 28 
(61%) 

22 of 29 
(76%) 

 100% Behind target due to x1 vacancy for 
over 2 years.  Outstanding inspections 
prioritised for July and Aug 2021. 

HMO's inspected 
– Low risk – 2 
years 

  15 of 26 
(58%) 

20 of 26 
(77%) 

100% Behind target due to x1 vacancy for 
over 2 years.  Outstanding inspections 
prioritised for July and Aug 2021. 

Selected 
Licensing - 
Anticipated 
applications 
(no.) 

950     2,100 1353  950 was the estimated no of 
applications originally expected.  The 
no. of expected applications over the 
licensing designation has been revised 
to 2,100. 

Selective 
Licensing - No 
licensed (No. / 
%)  

163     1709 1920 2100 Number of applications have exceeded 
predictions by 100%.  Reflects growth 
in the private rented sector and 
success of the Selective Licensing 
scheme. 

Regeneration and Development Projects 

Spend against 
non-Housing 
programme 

 
 £3.21m  £0.97m  £1.101m 

 
Reduced spend reflects smaller capital 
programme.  

Spend against 
Housing 
programme 

 
 £3.04m  £1.384m  1.393m 

 
Reduced spend reflects smaller 
programme. Majority of the spend is 
on DFGs. 

Total Spend 
against 
programme 

 
 £6.25m  £2.354m  £2.494m 

  

Page 77



  

PERFORMANCE INDICATORS 2020/21 35 

 

Number of DFGs 
completed 

 107 116 81  Additional Technical Officer being 
recruited to accelerate and increase 
DFG awards and spend. 

Number of 
Affordable 
warmth grants 
completed 

 23 28 25  


Corporate Property and Asset Maintenance  

Asset disposal - 
Housing (acres) 

   1.63  0  
  

Asset disposals - 
Employment 
(acres) 

   0  0      

Asset disposals - 
Sports / Public 
Open Space 
(acres) 

   4.93  12.21      

Asset Transfer / 
Disposal (No.) 

   0  0      

Windfall 
(number) 

   6  6      

Rent Reviews (% 
complete) 

   29%  39%      

Vacant industrial 
/ commercial 
units (no. / %) 

   3 (30%)  3 (30%)   10%   

Building 
Maintenance 
H&S compliance 
(%) 

 
21%  72% 

 
Awaiting 
information 

95% Majority of service contracts in place, 
but significantly behind on producing 
monitoring information.  New 
resource temporarily allocated to this 
KPI to bring monitoring data up to 
date.  New member of staff being 
recruited to make sure we keep up to 
date with performance data. 

Haworth 
  
  
  

Visitors 27,544  27,911  26,224 3,069 28,500 Steady year on year increase in visitors 
until the impact of Covid which saw 
the Haworth closed for long periods.  
The aim is to build up visitor numbers 
again, subject to Covid restrictions. 

Weddings 23  28  33 5 35  Steady increase in weddings mainly 
due to the introduction of on-site 
catering.  Limited to small wedding 
events due to 50 maximum that can 
be accommodated in the Billiard / 
Music room.  Recent decrease in 
number due to Covid restrictions and 
closure. 

Events       10  Not set  We’ve always had events, but not 
monitored numbers.  We had just 
commenced marketing the Billiard / 
Music room for small events, 

Page 78



  

PERFORMANCE INDICATORS 2020/21 36 

 

especially corporate functions.  This is 
something we will recommence 
promoting subject to any Covid 
restrictions. 

Art studio 
vacancies (% 
occupancy) 

N/A  92%  92% 92% 100% 
(increased 
from 
92%) 

Almost always fully occupied. One unit 
(Potting shed) awaiting repairs with 
lots of demand – should be 100% 
occupancy by end of 2021/22.  The 
studios remained open during Covid 
restrictions. 

 

 

Page 79



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2. Minutes of Last Meeting
	3. Review of Council Reserves
	4. Performance Review 2020/21 (KPIs)
	Appendix B Performance Indicators 2020-2021


